
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Barbican Residential Committee 

 
Date: MONDAY, 28 JUNE 2021 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: INFORMAL VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING (ACCESSIBLE REMOTELY) 

 
Members: Randall Anderson 

Mark Bostock 
Deputy David Bradshaw 
Mary Durcan 
Michael Hudson (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Andrew McMurtrie 
 

Deputy Barbara Newman 
Susan Pearson 
Ruby Sayed (Ex-Officio Member) 
Jeremy Simons 
Deputy John Tomlinson  
Mark Wheatley (Chairman) 
Dawn Wright 
 

 
 
Enquiries: Julie Mayer  

 tel.no.: 020 7332 1410 
Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
 

Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link: 
 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical 
location.  Any views reached by the Committee today will have to be considered by [insert 
officer title] after the meeting in accordance with the Court of Common Council’s Covid 
Approval Procedure who will make a formal decision having considered all relevant 
matters. This process reflects the current position in respect of the holding of formal Local 
Authority meetings and the Court of Common Council’s decision of 15th April 2021 to 
continue with virtual meetings and take formal decisions through a delegation to the Town 
Clerk and other officers nominated by him after the informal meeting has taken place and 
the will of the Committee is known in open session. Details of all decisions taken under the 
Covid Approval Procedure will be available on line via the City Corporation’s webpages. 
 
A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of 
the public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting recordings 
do not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available 
on the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion 
of the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 



3 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 

 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
 

 a) To approve the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 
Monday, 15th March 2021  (Pages 9 - 16) 

 

 b) To approve the minutes of the special meeting held on Wednesday, 5th May 
2021  (Pages 17 - 18) 

 

 c) To receive the draft minutes of the Residents' Consultation Committee held on 
Monday, 14th June 2021  (Pages 19 - 26) 

 

4. TO APPOINT A MEMBER TO THE CULTURE MILE WORKING PARTY 
 

 Town Clerk to be heard – Terms of Reference attached. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 27 - 28) 

 
5. TO APPOINT A MEMBER TO THE CAR PARK CHARGES WORKING PARTY 
 

 Town Clerk to be heard – Terms of Reference attached. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 29 - 30) 

 
6. 'YOU SAID:WE DID' - OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
 

 The Committee is asked to note the outstanding actions list. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 31 - 32) 

 
7. FIRE SAFETY UPDATE 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 33 - 42) 

 
8. BARBICAN FIRE DOOR REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME - PROGRESS REPORT 

(GATEWAY 2) 
 



4 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 43 - 46) 

 
9. COMMUNAL REPAIRS & REDECORATION PROGRAMME FOR THE BARBICAN 

ESTATE (2015-2020) - OUTCOME REPORT (GATEWAY 6) 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 47 - 56) 

 
10. BARBICAN ESTATE REDECORATION PROGRAMME (2020-2025) - PROGRESS 

REPORT (GATEWAY 5) 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services Committee. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 57 - 60) 

 
11. CHARGING POLICY FOR CAR PARK AND STORES - ANNUAL REVIEW 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 61 - 72) 

 
12. ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING UPDATE 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 73 - 88) 

 
13. CLIMATE ACTION STRATEGY 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 89 - 124) 

 
14. SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT WORKING PARTY QUARTERLY REVIEW - 

JANUARY - MARCH 2021 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 125 - 134) 

 
15. PROGRESS OF SALES AND LETTINGS 
 



5 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 135 - 140) 

 
16. UPDATE REPORT 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 141 - 146) 

 
17. BARBICAN ARREARS 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 147 - 150) 

 
18. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 

 
 

19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 

20. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) on the grounds that they 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of the 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

 For Decision 
  

 
21. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To approve the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 15th March 2021. 
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 151 - 154) 

 
22. BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL ARREARS NON- PUBLIC APPENDIX 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 155 - 158) 

 
23. BARBICAN PODIUM WATERPROOFING,DRAINAGE AND LANDSCAPING 

WORKS (BEN JONSON, BRETON & CROMWELL HIGHWALK) - PHASE 2 - 1ST 
PRIORITY ZONE 

 



6 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services, 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 159 - 186) 

 
24. BARBICAN ESTATE COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES, RENTAL SUPPORT - 

REPAYMENT PLANS FROM JUNE 2021 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services. 
 

 For Information 
 (Pages 187 - 198) 

 
25. COMMERCIAL LETTING: SHAKESPEARE TOWER 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 199 - 202) 

 
26. PENDING URGENT DECISION REQUIRED  FOR A RENT FREE CONSIDERATION 

FOR COMMERCIAL TENANT - VERBAL UPDATE 
For Information 

 
 

27. BLAKE TOWER - VERBAL UPDATE 
For Information 

 
 

28. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

29. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 
 

Confidential 
 
30. MINUTES 

 
 

 a) To approve the confidential minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 15th 
March 2021   

 

  To approve the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 15th March 2021. 
 

 b) To receive the confidential minutes of the Car Park Charges Working Party 
held on Monday, 29th March  2021   

 



7 
 

 c) To receive the confidential minutes of the Car Park Charges Working Party 
held on Wednesday, 26th May 2021   

 

32. PROPOSALS FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 12% EFFICIENCY SAVINGS 
FOR 2021-22 

 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services.  
 

 For Decision 
  

 
33. COMMUNITY AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES – TARGET OPERATING MODEL 

(TOM) PROPOSALS 
 

 Report of the Director of Community and Children’s Services, 
 

 For Decision 
  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE (BRC) 
Monday, 15 March 2021  

 
Minutes of the virtual meeting of the Barbican Residential Committee streamed live 

via You Tube [insert details] on Monday, 15 March 2021 at 1.45 pm 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Michael Hudson (Chairman)* 
Mark Wheatley (Deputy Chairman)* 
Randall Anderson (Ex-Officio) 
Adrian Bastow 
Mark Bostock 
Deputy David Bradshaw 
Henry Colthurst* 
Mary Durcan 
Jeremy Mayhew* 
Andrew McMurtrie* 
Barbara Newman 
Susan Pearson* 
Deputy John Tomlinson 
Dawn Wright* 
 
*non-resident members 
 

 
Officers: 
Paul Murtagh 
Julie Mayer 

- Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services, 
Community and Children’s Services 

Michael Bennett - Community and Children’s Services 

Helen Davinson - Community and Children’s Services  

Anne Mason - Community and Children’s Services  

Alan Bennetts 
Mark Jarvis 

- Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department 
- Chamberlains 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
There were no apologies. 
 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
In respect of item 17 on the agenda (Residential Tenancy Reviews),  Mr 
Randall Anderson advised that his tenancy was not due for renewal until later in 
the year but he would not be speaking on this item. 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3a



3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 
3.1 14th December 2020  

RESOLVED, that – the public minutes and non-public summary of the 
meeting held on 14th December 2020 be approved. 

 
3.2 2nd February 2021 (Special Meeting)  

RESOLVED, that – the public minutes and non-public summary of the 
special meeting held on 2nd February 2021 be approved. 
 
Matters arising 
a) Members noted that work on the car park valuation was due to 

complete at the end of the month.  The Car Park Charges Working 
Party was due to meet on 29th March 2021, and the agenda would 
include premium parking bays. 

 
b) The Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services, advised that 

the £23,000 set aside for a new door entry system was a legacy 
budget and there were currently no plans for a replacement.   The 
Assistant Director would provide an update after the meeting in 
respect an alternative UK key provider.    

 
4. MINUTES OF THE BARBICAN RESIDENTS' CONSULTATION COMMITTEE 

(RCC)  
The Committee received the draft minutes of the Barbican Residential 
Committee held on 2nd March 2021. 
 

5. 'YOU SAID: WE DID'  
The Committee received the Outstanding Actions list. 
 
During the discussion on this item, the following points were noted: 
 

a) The Sub Committee referred to in respect of the highwalks was the 
Resource Allocation Sub Committee (of the Policy and Resources 
Committee).  The Chairman advised that he had contacted the Chair of 
the Policy and Resources Committee in respect of the  inadequate 
funding received by the Department of Community and Children’s 
Services, when it took over responsibility for the highwalks, and had 
requested a further budget transfer to compensate for this.   

 
b) In respect of the electric vehicle charging points, there had been an 

update at the last meeting of the Barbican Residents’ Consultation 
Committee (RCC), as set out in the previous agenda item.  An 
officer/resident working party had been set up, with a meeting planned 
for either later this week or next week.   

 
c) The Redecorations Programme was under review and the Committee 

would receive an update at the June RCC/BRC meetings.  
 
 

Page 10



6. UPDATE REPORT  
The Committee received an update report of the Director of Community and 
Children’s Services. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.  
 

7. FIRE SAFETY ORAL UPDATE  
The Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services was heard in respect of 
fire safety matter on the Estate and the Committee noted the following: 
 

a) There had been some delay to Arup’s fire safety survey due to the 
current National Lockdown but this was now progressing, and a desk top 
survey was underway with colleagues in the Estate Office and Planning 
Department.   Arup’s had been engaged on the construction of the 
Barbican and had a very extensive knowledge of the Estate.  Once 
restrictions were lifted, the site surveys would proceed.  No issues had 
arisen so far, and the Assistant Director thanked the Estate Office staff 
for progressing this work under very difficult circumstances.  The 
Assistant Director agreed to provide Arup’s contact details to Deputy 
John Tomlinson.     

 
b) The Fire Risk Assessments were due for renewal this year having last 

been completed over three years ago. In accordance with the advice of 
the Corporate Fire Safety Advisor and the Regulatory Reform Order, 
they would focus initially on the tower blocks and then the rest of the 
Estate would follow.  Turner Townsend was the new service provider 
and the Department of Community and Children’s Services had 
appointed a new Departmental Health and Safety Advisor, who would be 
working closely with them.    

 
c) The Fire Signage Project on the Estate had been suspended for the time 

being, while discussions were ongoing with Planning and English 
Heritage.  Whilst Listed Building Consent would not be required, the 
Planning Department has requested the development of a Fire Strategy, 
in order for the project to proceed.  The Assistant Director reassured 
Members that residents’ comments in respect of the signage would be 
taken into account, but the signage must be legally compliant and fit-for-
purpose.  However, there would be site visits as part of the development 
of the Fire Strategy in order to check the appropriateness and the 
readability of the signs at different times of the day.   

 
d) The compartmentation issues with Frobisher Crescent were being 

addressed; the specification was almost complete and officers would 
then be able to go to market for procurement.   

 
e) The Assistant Director agreed to follow up on the last meeting with the 

Fire Brigade in terms of the outstanding recommendations.  Members 
noted that, despite the pandemic, there had been a couple of ad-hoc fire 
safety inspections undertaken by the Fire Brigade on the HRA estates.  
Furthermore, there was currently a White Paper in respect of the 

Page 11



‘Buildings Safety Bill’, which would place more stringent obligations and 
reporting regulations on landlords.    

 
 

8. BARBICAN FIRE DOOR REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME  
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Community and 
Children’s Services in respect of a proposed programme of works to replace all 
fire rated doors (including any associated panel surrounds, fanlight windows, 
refuse cupboards and intake cupboards) within the residential blocks of the 
Barbican Estate, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the current 
Building Regulations in respect of fire safety.    
 
The Assistant Director explained that more detail would emerge in the next 
‘Gateway 4’ report when, the estimates would be refined to reflect more 
accurate costings and the risk register updated accordingly.   The Chairman of 
the Finance Committee, also a Member of this Committee, confirmed that there 
was provision within next year’s budget for the replacement of the fire safety 
doors.   
 
In response to a question, the Committee noted that a full schedule of the 
replacement programme would be drawn up by the consultant, with enclosed 
areas prioritised.  The Assistant Director explained that doors which opened 
onto open spaces would be of a lower priority, and some of them were originals 
and in very good condition and may not need to be replaced.   
 
RESOLVED, that: 
 
1. That budget of £275,000 be approved for internal staff costs and 

professional fees to reach the next Gateway; 
2. The total estimated cost of the project at £20,000,000 (excluding risk) be 

noted; 
3. The risk register in appendix 2 to the report be noted.  
 

9. SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT WORKING PARTY QUARTERLY REVIEW: 
OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2020  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services, which updated Members on the review of the estate-wide 
implementation of Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and Key Performance 
Measures (KPIs) for the quarter October – December 2020. The report also 
included comments from the House Officers and the Resident Working Party 
and an ongoing action plan for each of the SLAs.  
 
In response to a query raised at the Barbican RCC meeting on 5th March, in 
respect of the Tower lift KPI, the officer explained that the actual figure was 
96.2% due to Shakespear Tower’s lower availability for that quarter.    
 
RESOLVED, that - the report be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
 
 

10. PROGRESS OF SALES AND LETTINGS  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services which advised Members of the sales and lettings that have been 
approved by officers since the last meeting of the Committee, under delegated 
authority and in accordance with Standing Orders. The report also provided 
information on surrenders of tenancies received and the number of flat sales to 
date. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 

11. BARBICAN ARREARS  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services, which advised Members of the current arrears in  respect of tenants 
and leaseholders on the Barbican Estate. The officer advised that tenant 
arrears had reduced, with one tenancy being terminated and transferred to 
‘former tenant arrears’ for a write off.  The Committee noted that arrears 
relating to stores and car park charges were administered alongside 
leaseholder arrears, and more details were provided in the non-public appendix 
to this report. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.     
 

12. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN  
The Chairman was heard in respect of Virgin Active’s lease which had been 
assigned to Nuffield Health.   The Committee noted that there had been a 
significant debt write off, approved by the by Finance Committee and following 
extensive officer advice in that this action would be in the best interests of the 
City, as it would enable the lease assignment to proceed.  The Chairman had 
met with officers and Virgin Active in December 2020, and they had been 
provided with information under a non-disclosure agreement.   
 

13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were two questions, as follows: 
 
1. At the meeting of the Community and Children’s Service Committee 

(CCSC) last week, Members had received a non-public report entitled 
‘Climate Action Strategy (Housing Update)’, which was subsequently 
redacted and placed on the public part of the Agenda.   The Assistant 
Director advised that, whilst the report had been presented to CCSC in 
respect of HRA properties, it also applied in part to the Barbican Estate.  
The Committee noted that a desktop energy audit was underway to 
establish what information was available on the Barbican properties.  A 
second piece of work, led by the City Surveyor, would seek to appoint a 
consultant to develop an action plan for achieving zero carbon in the 
Corporation’s housing portfolio.  Members noted that it had been necessary 
to move quickly in respect of HRA properties, in order to maximise the 

Page 13



prospects for grant funding, and there would be a similar report to the 
RCC/BRC in June.    

 
The Assistant Director stressed that the success of the Climate Action 
Strategy depended heavily on resident buy-in and agreed to discuss with 
Mark Bostock, after the meeting, noting the level of expertise available on 
the Barbican Estate and residents’ willingness to assist.  Given that the 
Barbican only uses electricity, the Consultant’s brief would also include 
energy use and reducing wastage, noting that lower energy costs would 
reduce service charges.  The Chairman felt that a building’s listed status 
should not be a barrier to making buildings more energy efficient, and it 
was noted that there had been cases where listed buildings had been 
demolished in order to make way for more energy efficient developments. 

 
2. Further to the announcement of the cancellation of the Centre for Music 

and the plans to upgrade the Barbican Centre, officers would ensure that 
lines of communication remained open, and this might including sharing 
Barbican Centre Board reports with the BRC, when appropriate.   Members 
noted that the Estate Office had enjoyed a good working relationship with 
the Arts Centre for a number of years.   The Chairman suggested that co-
ordination of the suite of committees serving the Barbican should be raised 
as part of the ongoing consultation on the Governance Review, as this 
would be particularly important if the BRC were to be abolished. 

 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  

There were no items and the Committee noted that this would be Michael 
Hudson’s, last meeting as Chairman before his term expired in April 2021.  
Before closing the public part of the meeting, Mr Hudson thanked members, 
officers and members of the public for watching the recording.    
 

15. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED, that - under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
Item Nos    Para nos 
17-22    1,2 & 3 
25    1,2,3 & 4 

16. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
 
16.1 14th December 2020  

RESOLVED, that – the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 14th 
December 2020 be approved. 
 

16.2 2nd February 2021 (Special Meeting)  
RESOLVED, that – the non-public minutes of the special meeting held 
on 2nd February 2021 be approved. 
 
 

Page 14



17. BARBICAN ESTATE RESIDENTIAL TENANCY RENEWALS  
The Committee considered and approved a report of the Director of Community 
and Children’s Services.  
 

18. BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL ARREARS APPENDIX   
The Committee received a non-public appendix in respect of agenda item 11.  
 

19. BARBICAN ESTATE WRITE OFF - RESIDENTIAL TENANT  
The Committee considered and approved a report of the Director of Community 
and Children’s Services. 
 

20. BARBICAN ESTATE COMMERCIAL TENANTS AND COVID-19, 
PROPOSALS FOR MARCH 2021 QUARTER  
The Committee considered and approved a report of the Director of Community 
and Children’s Services. 
 

21. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN (NON-PUBLIC)  
The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk. 
 

22. BLAKE TOWER - ORAL UPDATE  
The Assistant Director, Barbican and Property Services was heard. 
 
At 3.40 pm the Committee agreed to waive standing orders in order to conclude 
the business on the agenda.  
 

23. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE COMMITTEE  
There was one question whilst the public were excluded. 
 

24. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
 
Confidential agenda  item 
 

25 PROPOSALS FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 12% EFFICIENCY 
SAVINGS FOR 2021-22 
The Committee considered and approved a report of the Director of Community 
and Children’s Services. 

 
 
 
The meeting ended at 4.00 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 5 May 2021  
 

Minutes of the meeting streamed to You Tube - https://youtu.be/fP44IOU9kOo  
at 12 noon. 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Randall Anderson 
Mark Bostock 
Deputy David Bradshaw 
Mary Durcan 
Michael Hudson 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Andrew McMurtrie 
Deputy Barbara Newman 
Susan Pearson 
Deputy John Tomlinson 
Mark Wheatley 
 
In Attendance 
 
 
Officers: 
Michael Bennett - Community and Children's Services 

Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's Department 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
It was proposed by Deputy David Bradshaw, Seconded by Mary Durcan and 
RESOLVED, that – Barbara Newman take the Chair until the new Chairman is 
elected.   
 
Apologies were received from Dawn Wright and Adrian Bastow. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations. 
 

3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
RESOLVED, that - in accordance with Standing Order 29, and being the only 
Member willing to serve, Mark Wheatley be elected as Chairman for 2021/22. 
 

4. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN  
RESOLVED, that - In accordance with Standing Order 30, and exercising the 
right of the immediate past Chairmen, Michael Hudson be elected as Deputy 
Chairman for 2021/22. 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 3b



5. ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL  
The Order of the Court dated 15th April 2021, appointing the Committee and 
approving its Terms of Reference was received. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12.05 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 18



BARBICAN ESTATE RESIDENTS’ CONSULTATION COMMITTEE (RCC) 
Monday, 14 June 2021  

 
Minutes of the meeting streamed to: https://youtu.be/QF0XOSHQPu8  

(please note this recording will be available for one year from the date of the meeting) 

 
Present 

 Christopher Makin - Chair  
Ted Reilly - Deputy Chair 
John Tomlinson – Cromwell Tower 
David Lawrence – Lauderdale Tower 
Adam Hogg – Barbican Association (Chair) 
Fiona Lean - Ben Jonson House 
Rodney Jagelman - Thomas More House 
James Ball - Brandon Mews 
Joe Reeves - Mountjoy House 
Tim Hollaway - Lambert Jones Mews 
Michael Swash – Willoughby House 
Guy Nisbett - Speed House 
Helen Hudson - John Trundle House 
Dave Taylor - Gilbert House 
Andy Hope - Breton House 
Jim Durcan - Andrewes House 
 
In attendance: 
Mark Wheatley – Chairman of the Barbican Residential Committee (BRC) 
Michael Hudson – Deputy Chairman of the BRC 
Helen Fentimen – Ward Member for Aldersgate 

 
  

 

 
Officers: 
Paul Murtagh 
Helen Davinson 

- Head of Barbican and Property Services, 
Community and Children’s Services 

Anne Mason 
Barry Ashton 

- Community and Children’s Services 
- Community and Children’s Services 

Michael Gwyther-Jones - Community and Children’s Services 

Jason Hayes 
Julie Mayer 

- Community and Children’s Services 
- Town Clerks 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Gordon Griffiths and Mike Cribb. 
The Chair welcomed Dave Taylor, the new representative for Gilbert House. 
 

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations. 
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED, that – the minutes of the meeting held on 1st March 2021 be 
approved. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 3c

https://youtu.be/QF0XOSHQPu8


 
 

4. 'YOU SAID; WE DID' - OUTSTANDING ACTIONS LIST  
The Committee received the outstanding actions list. 
 

5. CAR PARK CHARGING POLICY  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services which set the context for the review of the Charging Policy for Car 
Parking and Stores on the Barbican Estate. 
 
In response to a question about the difference in charges between stores within 
car parks and buildings, given that stores within buildings are at 93% 
occupancy, the Assistant Director advised that the 8% increase had been 
recommended by the Car Park Charges Working Party.  The Barbican 
Residential Committee (BRC) on 28th June would receive a copy of the minutes 
of this meeting, with these comments recorded.  The Chairman also asked if it 
would be possible for the RCC to receive the accounts schedule, which had 
been considered by the Working Party.  
 
In response to a further question about the number of new bays compared to 
surrenders, the officer advised that this data represented just one period and 
was monitored very closely.   Members noted that officers also asked for the 
reason for surrenders, but it was rarely forthcoming.   The Assistant Director 
confirmed that, whilst the Department was being asked to make 12% savings, 
in line with other City Corporation Departments, it would not apply to areas 
covered by the service charge.  However, officers were working with the 
residents’ Leaseholder Service Charge Working Party; looking at ways to 
achieve value for money and capping the upward trend.   
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 

6. FIRE SAFETY UPDATE  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 

Services which provided an update on progress made in relation to fire safety 

matters since the last update report submitted to Committee in December 2020. 

During the discussion and questions the following points were noted: 

a. There had been some delays to the fire risk assessment due to Covid, 

but Turner Townsend had been appointed following a corporate 

procurement exercise, and a new fire officer had been appointed to the 

department. 

b. Arup’s brief had been circulated to the BRC and would also be shared 

with the RCC.   The Arup survey was progressing, and the Chairman 

agreed to work with the Assistant Director in order to agree an 

appropriate audience to receive their findings.   

c. The award of tender for Frobisher Crescent was expected next week, 

and the successful contractor would be required to develop a robust 

Page 20



communications protocol.  The Assistant Director met regularly with the 

Art Centre in respect of fire safety.  

d. All the works would comply with the new Fire Safety Bill, noting there is 

no ACM cladding on the Barbican Estate.   The Assistant Director was 

working on a joint report with the Remembrancer in respect of the 

implementation of the new Bill, which would be presented to the relevant 

Committees.    

e. The Member/Officer Fire Safety Working Group had been set up about 

18 months ago.  The Membership included the Chairman and Deputy 

Chairman of the BRC, together with a couple of other BRC Members. 

The Chairman (of the BRC) agreed to share the last set of minutes and 

membership details, for circulation with the minutes of this meeting.  

f. Residents would only pay for the signage used and would not be liable 

for any abortive costs.   

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.  

 
7. CLIMATE ACTION STRATEGY  

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 

Services, which set out the position of the Barbican Residential Estate in 

relation to the City of London Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy, and 

informed Members of the opportunities and next steps in progressing towards 

the decarbonisation of the housing stock. 

Some disappointment was expressed about the low turnout of residents at the 

first meeting of the Workshop, and the Assistant Director agreed to speak to the 

Climate Actions Strategy Communications Team.  It was suggested that, in 

order to maximise the credibility of the Barbican Association and RCC, it would 

be helpful to know the content in advance, noting that the next Workshop is 

scheduled for 5th July 2021.    Members noted that the outcome of the survey 

report was likely to be reported to the next meeting.  The Assistant Director 

advised that some interesting findings were emerging and agreed to discuss 

them further with the Chairman.  The Chairman also encouraged Members to 

share information with their House Groups and commended the informative 

content of the Estate Office’s weekly emails.     

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.   

 
8. BARBICAN FIRE DOOR REPLACEMENT PROGRAMME  

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 

Services in respect of a programme of works to replace all fire rated doors 

(including any associated panel surrounds, fanlight windows, refuse cupboards 

and intake cupboards) within the residential blocks of the Barbican Estate, to 

ensure that they meet fire safety requirements. 

Members noted that this was a complex project, due to the Estate’s Listed 

Building Status and,  whilst the survey would dictate the works schedule, it 

Page 21



would also be sensitive to making good requirements.   The officer also advised 

that the full door replacement programme was likely to take 2-3 years.  

Members noted that the design was reliant on consultation, which was at an 

early stage, and the establishment of a communication channel and working 

party would follow.   In response to a question about lift replacement, the officer 

gave assurance that all projects were strictly co-ordinated.  Members also 

noted that the Asset Management Working Party (AMWP) would be 

considering the outline programme, which would then be shared with residents 

as soon as possible.   

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.   

 
9. COMMUNAL REPAIRS & REDECORATION PROGRAMME FOR THE 

BARBICAN ESTATE (2015-2020) - OUTCOME REPORT (GATEWAY 6)  
The Committee received two reports in respect of the Communal Repairs & 
Redecoration Programme for the Barbican Estate, which the Chairman agreed 
to take together. 
 
It was suggested that, in order to maintain transparency, the schedule of rates 

and total figures be considered by the Asset Maintenance Working Party 

(AMWP).  Members noted that that the fire doors survey would also inform the 

redecorations programme.  

The Chairman advised that with regard to internal redecorations, some areas 
within buildings, had extremely low traffic, and this warranted further discussion 
within House Groups, as removing unnecessary and unwanted work from the 
programme would save on service charges. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 

10. COMMUNAL REPAIRS & REDECORATION PROGRAMME FOR THE 
BARBICAN ESTATE (2020-2025) - PROGRESS REPORT (GATEWAY 5)  
As above. 
 

11. BARBICAN PODIUM WATERPROOFING, DRAINAGE AND LANDSCAPING 
WORKS (BEN JONSON, BRETON & CROMWELL HIGHWALK) -PHASE 2 - 
1ST PRIORITY ZONE  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 

Services in respect of the surface refurbishment, replacement of defective 

waterproofing membrane, drainage improvements and landscaping works to 

the Barbican Podium.   

Members noted that the Project Website would be going live in July and a 

provisional date for a webinar had been scheduled for 20th July 2021.  In 

response to a question about the Gateway 6 (Outcome/ Lessons Learnt) report 

on Phase 1, the Assistant Director advised that this had not be signed off due 

to  outstanding issues with leaks and defects,  which would need to be resolved 

first.   However, officers were aware of the potential  causes , and this learning 

Page 22



would be carried forward to Phase 2.   Members would receive an interim 

Outturn Report in the Autumn,  providing more detail.   

The Chairman advised that a resident had expressed concerns  about white 

staining on the tiling around the water feature by Bunyan Court. The Assistant 

Director advised that this had been inspected and would update the Chairman 

and resident with a proposed solution. 

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 

12. COMMERCIAL LETTING: PODIUM UNIT SHAKESPEARE TOWER, 
BARBICAN ESTATE  
The Committee received a redacted report in respect of a commercial letting, 

which would be considered by the BRC on  28th June 2021.  

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 

13. SLA REVIEW  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services, which updated Members on the review of the estate wide 
implementation of Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and Key Performance 
Measures (KPIs) for the quarter January – March 2021.  
 
Members noted that a number of questions about major works elements had 

been emailed ahead of today’s meeting.  It was agreed that they be considered 

by the AMWP tomorrow evening, and the responses circulated with the minutes 

of this meeting.  In response to a question about issues with data extraction, 

Members noted that the current system was due to be replaced.  The Assistant 

Director suggested that the AMWP receive an update on its implementation, 

expected in November 2021. Finally, the Chairman advised that nominations 

for membership of the Service Level Agreement Working Party were due by the 

end of this month.  Expressions of interested were welcomed, given that this 

working party is integral to the work of the RCC.   

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.   

 
14. PROGRESS OF SALES AND LETTINGS  

The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services, which advised Members of the sales and lettings approved by under 
delegated authority since the last meeting.  The report also provides 
information on surrenders of tenancies received and the number of flat sales to 
date. 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.   
 

15. WORKING PARTY UPDATES  
The Committee received updates from the following Working Parties: 
 

• Gardens Advisory 

• Asset Maintenance 

Page 23



• Background Underfloor Heating 

• Leaseholder Service Charge 

The Chair of the Leaseholder Service Charge Working Party (LSCWP) was 

aware that a number of residents are very  keen to cut service charges but 

stressed that the  LSCWP’s Terms of Reference sought to achieve value for 

money.  Members were also reminded that concerns should be fed back to the 

RCC representatives via the House Groups.    

16. ELECTRICAL VEHICLE (EV) CHARGING UPDATE  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services in respect of the provision of EV charging points across the Barbican 
Estate Car Parks, following the introduction of Phase 1 in 2018, and the 
implementation of Phase 2 to the remaining car parks during Summer 2021. It 
included the re-introduction of a Residents Working Party via, the Residents 
Consultation Committee, and the ensuing meetings, actions and proposals. 
 
Members noted an update to the report in that the Working Party had 

suggested a 16p per kw charge, and this would be amended before the report 

is presented to the BRC on 28th June 2021.  Officers were commended for their 

swift response to resident concerns and there had been 3 very constructive 

meetings in a short period of time, demonstrating good joint working between 

officers and residents.   Members asked if the BRC could instruct the Working 

Party to investigate the concept of ‘at bay’ charging for residents, noting that 

some technical issues would be likely. 

RESOLVED, that – the report be noted. 
 

17. UPDATE REPORT  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services which provided updates on : 
 
1. Security - Anti-Social Behaviour  
2. Agenda Plan  
3. Public lift availability  
4. Asbestos inspections 
 
RESOLVED, that – the report be noted.   
 

18. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions 
 

19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
The Chair requested a verbal update from the Assistant Director, Barbican and 
Property Services. 
 
Members were reminded that the City of London Corporation should have 

taken over the management of Blake Tower in September 2019.  The Assistant 

Director stressed that the building would not be  taken over until the City 

Page 24



Corporation were fully satisfied as to the  condition of the building and the 

quality of the redevelopment work.  Members noted that the Assistant Director 

had written to the residents on three occasions, and Redrow had started to 

respond to the points raised in an independent survey.    The Assistant Director 

also stressed that the delayed takeover was outside the control of the City 

Corporation, which has done their utmost to seek a resolution.  Members would 

receive a more detailed report at the BRC/RCC meetings in September, and 

October 2021 was the very earliest date expected for the takeover.   

 
 
The meeting ended at 7.45 pm 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Julie.Mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



 
Culture Mile Working Party Composition and Terms of Reference 2021 
 

Composition 

• The Chair of the Policy & Resources Committee or his/her 
representative 

• four Members nominated by the Policy & Resources Committee (but 
not necessarily from the Committee).  

 
 The Chairman or his/her representative from the following 

committees/boards:-  

• the Board of Governors of the Museum of London 

• the Barbican Centre Board 

• the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama  

• the Culture, Heritage and Libraries Committee 

• the Planning and Transportation Committee 

• the Barbican Residential Committee  
 
 The following senior officers: -  

• Town Clerk 

• Managing Director, Barbican Centre 

• Director of the Built Environment  

• Director of Community and Children Services 

• Director, Museum of London 

• City Surveyor  
 

Terms of Reference 
The working party will oversee and co-ordinate the work being undertaken to 
develop the cultural hub in the Barbican area. 
 
It will do this by: -  

• Providing a cross-cutting overview of emerging activities related to the 
creation of a cultural hub 

• Providing advice on the potential of individual projects to contribute to the 
delivery of a cultural hub; and 

• Ensuring that decision making committees of the City of London Corporation 
are fully aware of the impact individual projects might have in the delivery of 
a cultural hub. 

 
Note: The Culture Mile Working Party shall have the power to co-opt people with 
relevant expertise or experience.  

 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



BARBICAN RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE (BRC) 
BARBICAN CAR PARK CHARGES WORKING PARTY 
 
 
Current Membership (2019/20) 
 
Members 
Chairman and Deputy Chairman of Barbican Residential Committee  (non-residents) 
Randall Anderson (resident) 
John Tomlinson (resident) 
David Bradshaw (resident) 
  
Officers 
Paul Murtagh 
Michael Bennett 
Anne Mason 
Barry Ashton 
  
 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
‘To proceed in the reference of the Grand Committee to review the charging policy 
for car parking and storage in the car parking areas of the Barbican and to report 
back thereon, with recommendations’. 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\7\AI00115700\$cfaymjwh.doc 

 “You Said; We Did” - Action List – May 2021 
 

Actions from March 2020 Barbican Residential Committee (BRC) & other 
outstanding issues (updates appear in italics)  

 

Issue Source Officer 

Barbican Highwalks - Planned Maintenance of the Public Realm   

The Resource Allocation Sub Committee (RASC) (of the Policy and 
Resources Committee) considered a report of the Director of Community 
and Children’s Services (DCCS) proposing the introduction of a planned 
programme of inspections and maintenance for the public realm areas of the 
Barbican Highwalk. The RASC noted the proposal had previously been 
presented following a resolution from BRC. 
 
The RASC proposed that planned maintenance of Barbican Highwalks 
public realm be included on a risk register, which the Director of DCCS 
agreed to. 
 
Resolved, that the RASC:- 
 

• Support a bid for additional funding of £125,000 per annum to be 
submitted to the RASC for the introduction of a planned programme 
of inspections and maintenance for the public realm areas of 
Barbican Highwalk.  

 
The BRC Chairman has been in contact with the Chair of the  Policy and 
Resources Committee in respect of the  inadequate funding received by 
DCCS,  when it took over responsibility for the highwalks, and had 
requested a further budget transfer to compensate for this. 
 
Ultimately, it remains with the Director of Community and Children’s 
Services to resolve the budget position and discussions are ongoing.  

RCC 
March 20 

Paul 
Murtagh 

   

Relationship of BRC Outturn Report to Service Charge Schedules   

Leaseholder Service Charge Working Party   

The Assistant Director had been working with residents on the Working 
Party in respect of a detailed review of service charges; looking at efficiency 
savings that could protect and possibly reduce charges in the future.  This 
would be an extensive piece of work, likely to take about six months, and the 
findings would be reported to both the RCC and BRC.  It was stressed that 
any benefits from the findings of the Working Party would not become 
apparent until the next financial year.  

BRC 
September 
2020 

Anne 
Mason 
Paul 
Murtagh 

   

Service Charge Expenditure & Income Account – Latest Approved 
Budget 2020/21 & Original Budget 2021/22 

  

Difficulty in obtaining keys for existing key system – for one of the Tower 
blocks the “suite” is being changed gradually as locks have reached the end 
of their life. 

BRC 
February 
2021 

Michael 
Bennett 
Helen 
Davison 

   

Contact: Michael Bennett, Head of Barbican Estates 
E: michael.bennett@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

  

   

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Barbican Residents Consultation Committee 
Barbican Residential Committee 
 

14 June 2021 
28 June 2021 

Subject: 
Fire Safety Update  
 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Director of Community & Children’s Services 
 

For Information 
 

Report author: 
Paul Murtagh 
Assistant Director Barbican & Property Services 
 

 
 

Summary 
 

The purpose of this report is to update Members on the progress that has been made 
in relation to fire safety matters since the last update report submitted to Committee in 
December 2020.  
 
 

Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to note, consider and comment on the report. 
 
 

Main Report 
 
Background 
 
1. In September 2017, a detailed report was brought to this Committee to update 

Members on the City of London Corporation’s (the Corporation) approach to fire 
safety on the Barbican Estate. The report informed Members of the progress we 
had made with matters such as: 

 

• fire risk assessments, 

• communication with residents, 

• estate management, 

• fire safety maintenance and improvement work, 

• inspections by the London Fire Brigade (LFB), 

• potential future improvement works. 
 

2. Subsequently, further update reports have been brought back to Committee on a 
regular basis with the last one being November 2020. This paper is intended as a 
further update. 

 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



Fire Risk Assessments 
 
3. As Members are aware, Frankham Risk Management Services Limited completed 

FRAs for each of the residential blocks on the Barbican Estate in January/February 
2018 and, as agreed by Members, these were published on the Corporation’s 
website.   
 

4. At its meeting on 17 September 2018, Members were first presented with the 
‘Specific Hazard Identification and Action Plan Template for Fire Risk 
Assessments’, which lists the recommendations from all the FRA’s on the Barbican 
residential blocks. Officers continue to work on the various recommendations 
contained within the Action Plan and good progress is being made. An updated 
version of the Action Plan is included at Appendix 1 to this report.  
 

5. Carrying out FRA’s under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (RRO), 
is a vital and legally required part of the CoLC’s fire safety strategy for its residential 
portfolio. The RRO does not specify how often FRA’s should be carried out or 
reviewed. However, the Local Government Association (LGA) has published 
guidance on fire safety in purpose-built blocks of flats, which recommends the 
following procedure for FRA’s: 

 
Low-rise blocks up to 3-storeys built in the last 20 years 
 

• reviewed every 2 years; 

• redone every 4 years. 
 
For blocks with higher risks (such as age), or those more than 3-storeys high   
 

• reviewed every year; 

• redone every 3 years. 
 

6. Up until recently, the FRA’s for the Barbican residential blocks had been done 
annually. The FRA’s from January/February 2018 have again been reviewed and 
mandated in line with the Corporation’s auditing procedures for FRA’s.  
     

7. Clearly, simply carrying out FRA’s is worthless if they are not updated regularly 
and the improvement work identified is not undertaken. As Members will be 
appreciate, a considerable amount of fire safety work has been done, is being done 
and is scheduled to be done to maintain the Barbican residential blocks at the 
required standard.  

 
8. Whilst, understandably, our focus has been on continuing the progress we are 

making on the improvements identified in the Action Plan appended to this report, 
we are looking to carry out new Type 3 FRA’s for each of our residential blocks of 
flats on our social housing estates later this year. Following a Corporate 
procurement exercise, Turner & Townsend has been appointed to undertake the 
next round of FRA’s for Housing and Barbican. We are currently in discussion with 
Turner & Townsend on the development of a schedule for carrying out the new 
FRA’s.   
 

Page 34



Fire Doors 
 
9. As Members will be aware from the previous update report, random sample testing 

of a three front entrance door sets to individual flats in the Barbican Estate has 
been carried out. It should be remembered that all three door sets, when installed, 
complied fully with the Building Regulations that were in force at that time. 
However, the destructive testing has shown that all three door sets tested failed to 
meet the modern standards for fire resistance.  
 

10. At its meeting on 16 March 2020, Members agreed with the recommendation of 
officers that consideration needs to be given to replacing front door sets to all 
residential properties on the Barbican Estate with new modern replacements that 
comply with Approved Document B – Fire Safety of the Building Regulations. 

 
11. In accordance with the expressed views of Members, Officers made a successful 

Capital Bid for £20million for the replacement of front door sets to all residential 
properties on the Barbican Estate.   

 
12. At its meeting on 15 March 2021, Members approved a Gateway 2 Report for the 

Barbican Fire Door Replacement Programme, which provided for the following: 
 

• approval of a budget of £275,000 for internal staff costs and professional 
fees to reach the next Gateway; 

• noting the total estimated cost of the project at £20,000,000 (excluding risk). 

• noting the risks contained in the Risk Register. 
 
13. We have recently completed a procurement exercise and, awarded the contract 

for the full survey of all the fire doors across the Barbican Estate. This will not only 
confirm the numbers and scope of the Barbican Fire Door Replacement 
Programme but, will also identify and highlight the areas of compartmentation that 
are associated with the fire doors. The survey will identify the various door types 
and risks to enable a structured and prioritised door replacement schedule to be 
developed, along with the brief and scope for the appointment of the Design Team. 
 

14. A more detailed update on the Barbican Fire Door Replacement Programme is 
included as a separate item on the agenda for this meeting.   

 
Communication with residents 

 
15. Members will recall that detailed information, in the form of ‘Frequently Asked 

Questions’ bulletins, was produced specifically for the Barbican Estate. This was 
distributed to all House Groups and to residents through our email broadcast 
service and has also been posted on the Housing Fire Safety pages on the City’s 
website. This information is reviewed on a regular basis and is updated as the fire 
safety improvement works progress. 
 

16. Except for Frobisher Crescent, which is dealt with separately in this report, there 
have been no new significant fire safety issues raised by residents since the last 
update report in March 2021. Detailed information on fire safety remains available 
on the Corporation’s website. 

Page 35



 
Estate Management 

 
17. Barbican Estate staff continue their work to ensure that balconies, walkways and 

exits are kept clear from hazards. This includes the removal of combustible 
material from outside properties, along with any items which might cause a trip 
hazard for residents or firefighting crews in the event of an emergency. 
 

London Fire Brigade (LFB)  
 
18. At the time of the last update report in November last year, it was reported that the 

LFB was carrying out more frequent ad-hoc inspections on residential flat blocks 
across the City to ensure that they comply with the requirements of the Regulatory 
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 and to ensure that appropriate FRAs are being 
carried out.  
 

19. Although the LFB attends the Barbican Estate on a regular basis to carry out 
routine safety inspections, provide advice to residents and, to discuss fire safety 
related matters with officers, there have been no further formal ad-hoc fire safety 
inspections on the Barbican Estate since the last update report in November 2020. 
Officers continue to maintain a healthy working relationship with the LFB and 
regularly consult with and seek the advice of the LFB on fire safety matters.  
 

Frobisher Crescent 
 
20. Members will be aware from the previous Fire Safety Update Report to this 

Committee that following the completion of a detailed and specialist survey 
undertaken by Guardian Consultancy Services Limited, the full extent of the 
deficiencies with the existing compartmentation/fire stopping and, the extent of the 
remedial work required had been identified. 
 

21. Officers subsequently made a successful Capital Bid for £600,000 to fund the 
necessary remedial works to the communal areas and individual dwellings in 
Frobisher Crescent. A Gateway 1-4 Project Proposal & Options Appraisal Report 
was submitted to the Projects Sub Committee and the Barbican Residential 
Committee (BRC) in September last year and, the following recommendations 
were agreed: 

 

• A total revised estimated project cost of £800,000 (including staff and 
consultancy costs of £100,000). 

• Approval for the expenditure of £60,000 for staff and consultancy fees to 
reach the next stage of the Gateway process. 

• Note that ‘in principle’ funding of up to £550,000 for this scheme was agreed 
as part of the 2020/21 annual capital bids, with draw down being subject to 
the further approval of the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee. A bid for 
additional resources will be required to meet the funding shortfall of 
£250,000 against the estimated cost of £800,000. 

• That approval is given for Option 1:  

Page 36



o To undertake a compliant procurement exercise for the fire safety 
improvement works to residential levels 7, 8 and 9 at Frobisher 
Crescent on the Barbican Residential Estate. 

o To seek Chief Officer approval for a contractor to be appointed to 
carry out the fire safety improvement works to residential levels 7, 8 
and 9 at Frobisher Crescent on the Barbican Residential Estate. 

  
22. The progress with this project has been affected and delayed by the COVID-19 

situation and, as a result, on the instruction of the Corporation’s Fire Safety 
Advisor, the following interim works were completed to the residential levels of 
Frobisher Crescent: 

 
i. Firestopping to the internal riser cupboards and internal communal 

corridors to all three residential levels. This work comprised a combination 
of permanent firestopping solutions, where practical and accessible and, 
temporary solutions in the form of the installation of ‘intumescent’ pillows. 

ii. Inspection, testing, repair and certification of all fire doors to the communal 
corridors and escape routes. 

iii. Allocation and delivery of battery-operated smoke detectors to residents in 
Frobisher Crescent. It should be noted that, access was difficult and, only 
24 residents were handed the smoke detectors. The remaining smoke 
detectors are stored in the Barbican Estate Office and absent residents 
were written to, asking them to collect. 

 
23. Following the completion of the specification for the permanent remedial works, a 

fully compliant procurement exercise was carried out with a closing date for tender 
submissions of Friday 21 May 2021. There has been considerable interest in this 
project and, accompanied site visits were arranged for 15 companies expressing 
an interest in the works. Eight tender submissions were subsequently received 
and, at the time of writing this report, a detailed analysis of the tenders received is 
underway. It is expected that we will be able to appoint a suitable contractor in July 
this year, with an anticipated commencement date early in August. The first step 
in this process will be for the successful contractor to develop and implement a 
Communications Protocol for the project to ensure that Frobisher Crescent 
residents are consulted on the works and kept appraised of progress. As Members 
will recall, it has been agreed that residents will not be recharged the cost of this 
work (including the interim works outlined above). 
 

24. As has been explained previously, we continue to work very closely with our 
colleagues in the Barbican Arts Centre to ensure that all future fire safety works 
commissioned by the Estate Office for Frobisher Crescent and the Arts Centre are 
aligned.  

 
Further specialist fire safety survey 
 
25. Due to the unique nature of the Barbican Estate, some Members have previously 

suggested that a more detailed specialist fire safety survey be undertaken on a 
representative sample of flat blocks on the Estate. The purpose of this specialist 
survey would be to review and assess specific fire safety precautions such as: 

 

Page 37



• Communal fire doors; 

• Smoke control measures; 

• Fire alarm and fire detection measures; 

• Escape routes; 

• Ventilation provisions. 
 
26. This specialist survey would also satisfy some of the recommendations of the 

FRA’s that were carried out by Frankham Risk Management Services Limited in 
January/February 2018 and, will help fill in some of the ‘gaps’ in our understanding 
of how the residential buildings will perform in the event of a fire.  
 

27. At its meeting on 16 March 2020, the BRC received a report from officers seeking 
Member approval to a proposal from Arup, a specialist firm of engineering 
consultants, to carry out a detailed fire safety audit on a representative sample of 
four residential blocks on the Barbican Estate. The BRC subsequently approved 
the following: 

 

• The direct appointment of Arup to undertake a detailed fire safety audit on 
a representative sample of four residential blocks on the Barbican Estate.  

• That the appointment of Arup be progressed by way of an appropriate 
‘compliant waiver’ as directed and agreed by City Procurement. 

• That the full cost of the detailed fire safety audit is recoverable, by way of 
service charge, from all long leaseholders on the Barbican Estate. 

 
28. Unfortunately, as reported to this Committee previously, progress with the fire 

safety audit has been significantly delayed by COVID-19. However, Arup has now 
commenced the audit with a desktop analysis and site survey of Andrewes House. 
Work will next begin on Cromwell Tower with, two further blocks, likely to be Ben 
Jonson and Mountjoy, to follow. Arup is expected to complete this commission 
within the next 12 to 16 weeks.  

 
Fire Safety Signage 
 
29. One of the key findings of the FRA’s completed by Frankham Risk Management 

Services Limited in January/February 2018, was the need to need to update and 
bring up to standard the fire safety signage across all residential blocks on the 
Barbican Estate. The existing signage was found to be out of date, inadequate, 
conflicting and, in some cases, incorrect.  

 

30. Following a compliant procurement exercise, Britannia Fire & Security Limited was 
appointed to carry out this work. In order to benefit from ‘economies of scale’, the 
contract for this work also included similar works across the Corporation’s social 
housing estates, which is almost completed. 

 
31. When work began on the Barbican Estate, residents raised concerns with the 

replacement signage particularly, in relation to the suitability of the signs in the 
context of the listed status of the Barbican Estate. In order to address the concerns 
of residents, the fire signage works on the Barbican Estate were suspended. 

 

Page 38



32. In order to address and resolve the concerns raised by residents, following further 
discussions with the Corporation’s Planning Team and, a compliant procurement 
exercise, we have appointed rePurpose Architects to develop and produce a 
bespoke Fire Strategy Document for the Barbican Residential Estate that will 
analyse the existing fire safety signage on the Estate and, will set out the proposals 
for, and reasoning behind the new fire safety signage for the various blocks. The 
Fire Strategy Document is nearing completion and once finalised, will be submitted 
to the LFB for its consideration and approval. It will also be shared and discussed 
with members of the BRC Member/Officer Fire Safety Group before its 
implementation. 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Fire Safety Action Plan 
 
 

 
Paul Murtagh, Assistant Director, Barbican & Property Services 
T: 020 7332 3015 E: paul.murtagh@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 39

mailto:paul.murtagh@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



APPENDIX 1 - ACTION PLAN

Estates Observation/Issues Consideration and recommendation Block Risk Priority & Action completed by 

Date

Responsible Team Timescale Cost Comments

Barbican Estate Evidence was not available to confirm relevant electrical equipment such as communal 

area heating appliances; are subject to PAT.  

Ensure relevant equipment is subject to a robust PAT by a competent person. Only Tower blocks (Except Lambert 

Jones Mews, Postern & Wallside)

Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services Completed N/A Regular testing programme in place. 

Certificates filed centrally. Will be made 

available before FRA in future.

Barbican Estate Evidence was not available to confirm the fixed wiring installation is subject to an 

appropriate programme of periodic testing. 

Ensure a robust programme of 5 year fixed wiring testing is implemented. All blocks and car parks Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services Completed £20,000 per annum Detailed pre-survey completed, 

programme now commenced.

Barbican Estate Due to the survey being undertaken during daylight hours it was not possible to 

determine if an adequate provision of emergency lighting exists throughout the 

premises. 

A survey should be undertaken by a competent person; with any identified 

issues being rectified to ensure the system complies with BS 5266.

All blocks and car parks Priority-E Project Planning Medium Housing Property Services Completed N/A Emergency lighting maintenance 

contract in place.

Barbican Estate • The flat entrance door is consistent with those throughout the block. It does not 

comply with current standards.                                                                                                                  

• It appears to be of substantial construction, without substantial rebates, smoke strips 

or intumescent seals, hinges x3 do not appear to be of fire resisting standard. The centre 

hinge appears to be of spring loaded design, to assist with door closing; however it was 

noted that this arrangement did not result in the door self-closing effectively.                                                                                                                                                             

Due to the opportunity for means of escape in 2 directions; this situation is 

considered acceptable. Consideration should be given to upgrading/replacing 

doors on the means of escape routes; to current standards as part of any 

future refurbishment program. Consideration should be given to implementing 

a robust program of testing and servicing for spring loaded hinges; to ensure 

final exit doors close effectively.                                              

All blocks Priority-D 3 Months  Low (Project) Housing Property Services 31-Mar-23 £20million Destructive testing of front entrance 

doors confirm that they are generally 

not up to modern standard. Successful 

capital bid made for funding to replace 

all doors.

Barbican Estate It was noted that in some instances lobby doors are not provided with smoke seals. 

Ensure all such doors are provided with adequate protection against the spread of 

smoke.

Ensure all such doors are provided with adequate protection against the 

spread of smoke.

All blocks (Except Lambert Jones Mews 

& Postern )

Priority-D 3 Months  Low Housing Property Services 30-Sep-21 £70,000 Pre-survey to identify full extent of 

works. Included in Arup Survey. 

Barbican Estate • It was noted that numerous doors to electrical intakes, service risers, plant rooms, 

stores and similar; within escape routes are not provided with ‘fire door keep locked 

shut’ signs.                                                                                                                                                             

• Lobby doors are not provided with ‘fire door keep shut signs’.                                                                

• ‘Do not use lift in case of fire’ signs are not displayed adjacent to lift enclosures. 

Ensure appropriate signs are displayed. Andrew House , Ben Johnson, Brandon 

Mews

Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services 30-Nov-21 £120,000 Included in Fire Signage Improvement 

Programme - work underway.

Barbican Estate Fire action notices are inconsistently displayed in communal areas and the guidance is 

ambiguous in respect of a ‘stay put’ evacuation strategy.

Consideration should be given to replacing this signage with more definitive 

instructions; displayed in a consistent manner.  

All blocks Priority-D 3 Months  Low Housing Property Services 30-Nov-21 £120,000 Included in Fire Signage Improvement 

Programme - work underway.

Barbican Estate It was noted that portable fire extinguishers are provided within communal areas. 

Typically fire extinguishers are not provided within this type of property as residents are 

unlikely to have been appropriately trained. 

Consideration should be given to their removal. All blocks and car parks Priority-C 28 days Medium Barbican Estate Office Completed N/A Fire extinguishers in plant rooms 

serviced to ensure they are fit-for-

purpose.

Barbican Estate As part of the fire risk assessment process a documentation audit was undertaken in 

respect of the specific premises. The brief was to randomly sample 6 categories from a 

detailed list detailed above. In this instance the only records available at the Estate Office 

were as follows;                                                                                                                                     

• Whilst it is evident that Allied Protection are maintaining fire alarm systems; 

contractors are not updating documented records.

• Records were not available to evidence the recently implemented program of fire door 

inspections.

• Fire stopping registers are not in place; this has specific relevance in respect of PDA’s & 

EDA’s.

• Records of fire brigade operation attendances are not maintained. It is recommended 

that robust arrangements be implemented to ensure the requirements of CoL Guidance 

Note on Fire Log Books on CoL premises are achieved.                                               •  

Portable firefighting equipment is out of test date; this situation is expected to be 

resolved in response to relevant guidance provided elsewhere in this report.

It is recommended that robust arrangements be implemented to ensure the 

requirements of CoL Guidance Note on Fire Log Books on CoL premises are 

achieved.

All blocks and car parks Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services Completed N/A Regular testing programme in place. 

Certificates filed centrally. Will be made 

available before FRA in future. 

Barbican Estate The emergency services box contained;                                                                                                  

1) Estate block plan map.                                                                                                                              

2) Useful telephone numbers list.                                                                                                            

3) Block plan.

Consideration should be given to liaising with London Fire Brigade to 

rationalise/standardise the information contained within the premises 

information box.

All blocks Priority-C 28 days Medium Barbican Estate Office Completed N/A All 36 ‘Premises Information’ boxes at

the entrances to the blocks and car

parks have been updated to include

Estate plans, block plans, and contact

numbers for the emergency services.

Barbican Estate It was noted that portable fire extinguishers within communal areas and plant rooms 

(provided for use by competent persons) have not been subject to servicing within the 

past 12 months. 

Subject to comments in 19.4, ensure all such equipment is robustly 

maintained.

All block and car parks (Except 

Lambert Jones Mews & Postern )

Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services Completed N/A

Barbican Estate What appears to be a BS 5839 pt 6 category LD3 grade F fire alarm system is installed.

• A means of providing detection and warning was not provided. The domestic smoke 

detector did not function when tested.

• Accommodation is largely of open plan design across all levels.

• Where provided doors to the internal escape route are unlikely to comply with current 

standards.

• It should be noted that issues exist in respect of the ability for CoL to effectively 

manage residents actions; which may compromise the internal means of escape from 

their or a neighbouring dwelling.                                                                                                               

• What appear to be original nonfire rated room dividers are present ( Cromwell Tower)

• Domestic smoke detectors x2 were provided. (John Trundle Court)

• A means of providing detection and warning was not provided. (John Trundle Court)

• Accommodation is largely of open plan design across all levels. (John Trundle Court)

• Where provided doors to the internal escape route are unlikely to comply with current 

standards. (John Trundle Court)

• Alternative means of escape routes provide direct access to the communal escape 

balcony at both the lower level and at the upper level, to a shared enclosed balcony; 

from where further escape should be made via the neighbouring dwelling. (John Trundle 

Court).                                                                                                                                                    

• Significant structural alterations have created a largely open plan flat; with non-fire 

rated room dividers.  (Lauderdale Tower)

As a compensatory feature in respect of internal configuration; consideration 

should be given to installing/upgrading a fire alarm system to BS 5839 pt 6 

category LD2 grade D.

All blocks Priority-B 4 days High Housing Property Services 30-Sep-21 £70,000 Pre-survey to identify full extent of 

works. Included in Arup Survey. 

Barbican Estate It should be noted that issues exist in respect of the ability for CoL to effectively manage 

residents actions; which may compromise the internal means of escape from their or a 

neighbouring dwelling.

CoL should undertake a strategic review of management protocols

regarding tenants/leaseholders actions which may implications the overall fire 

safety of the premises.

All blocks Priority-C 28 days Medium Barbican Estate Office Completed N/A Part of ongoing inspection regime carried 

out by House Officers in Barbican Estate 

Office.

P
age 41



APPENDIX 1 - ACTION PLAN

Barbican Estate • Vertical service risers which serve multiple dwellings are present; 

residents/contractors potentially have access to these enclosures for the purposes of 

alterations/maintenance to services.

• It was not possible to determine the standard of fire resistance provided between the 

flat and communal stair afforded by glazed partitions.

• It appears that flats were originally provided with a non-fire rated ‘pass door’ 

arrangement adjacent to the main entrance/exit door; in this instance this facility is still 

available.

Consideration should be given to the targeted inspections of a sample of

dwellings to undertake Type 4 fire risk assessments; to address specific

areas of concern. Consideration should be given to implementing a program of 

scheduled cleaning for communal kitchen extraction installations.

Andrew House , Ben Johnson, Brandon 

Mews, Defoe House, Frobisher 

Crescent, Speed House 

Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services 30-Sep-21 £70,000 Pre-survey to identify full extent of 

works. Included in Arup Survey. 

Barbican Estate Appropriate ‘no smoking’ signs are not prominently displayed within communal areas. Ensure appropriate signs are displayed. Brandon Mews Priority-D 3 Months  Low Housing Property Services Completed N/A

Barbican Estate It was noted that the final exit doors to alternative MOE from rooftop plant rooms are 

fitted with inappropriate locking mechanisms. 

It is recommended that failsafe devices; such as push paddles or similar are 

fitted.

Brandon Mews Priority-E Project Planning Low Housing Property Services Completed Part of maintenance programme.

Barbican Estate Where provided doors to the internal escape route do not appear to comply with current 

standards.

• A loft hatch and ladder arrangement provide internal access from 02 level the 03 level 

garage; where an alternative means of escape is available. It is assumed that the original 

design provide a permanent staircase between these levels.

• A means of providing detection and warning was not provided.

As a compensatory feature in respect of internal configuration; consideration 

should be given to installing/upgrading a fire alarm system to BS 5839 pt 6

category LD2 grade D.

Brandon Mews Priority-B 4 days High

Barbican Estate • Vertical service risers which serve 2 dwellings are present; residents/contractors 

potentially have access to these enclosures for the purposes of alterations/maintenance 

to services.                                                                                                       

Consideration should be given to the targeted inspections of a sample of 

dwellings to undertake Type 4 fire risk assessments; to address specific areas 

of concern.

Brandon Mews, Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services 30-Sep-21 £5,000 Further specialist detailed Fire 

Management Survey is being carried 

out. Initial surveys suggest that many of 

the improvements identified in the 

FRA's are unnecessary and are 

mitigated by the design of the building.

Barbican Estate The inadequate provision of electrical socket outlets, within the kitchen area; 

encourages the potentially hazardous use of multi adapters, trailing leads and similar.

Consideration should be given to providing additional electrical socket

outlets in the kitchen area.

Ben Johnson, Breton House, Bryer 

Court, Bunyan Court, Defoe House, 

Mountyjoy House, & Willoughby 

House

Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services Completed £100,000 We are only responsible for the 

kitchens in our rented homes. We have 

introduced an electrical testing 

programme that will pick up this 

improvement work.

Barbican Estate It was noted that in some instances discarded trade materials and general waste has 

been allowed to accumulate in riser cupboards. 

Implement robust management arrangements to ensure all such areas are 

maintained free from inappropriate storage.

Cromwell Tower, Lauderdale Tower & 

Shakespeare Tower

Priority-C 28 days Medium Barbican Estate Office Completed N/A Dealt with through inspection process 

carried out by Barbican Estate Office.

Barbican Estate It was noted that in a number of instances what appears to have been unauthorised 

structural alterations have been undertaken by/on behalf of residents. This has resulted 

in compromised standards of compartmentation between individual flats and the 

communal risers. 

Ensure appropriate remedial actions are implemented to achieve and maintain 

current standards.

Cromwell Tower, Lauderdale Tower & 

Shakespeare Tower

Priority-D 3 Months  Medium Housing Property Services Completed £40,000 per annum We have appointed a Technical 

Surveyor to oversee the Landlord's 

Approval process.

Barbican Estate Anecdotal evidence from the tenant suggested that lack of maintenance to the kitchen 

extraction system has previously resulted in a small fire; elsewhere on the estate.

Consideration should be given to implementing a program of scheduled 

cleaning for communal kitchen extraction installations.

John Trundle Court Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services Completed N/A Inspection and maintenance 

programme in place.

Barbican Estate • The internal original configuration appears to have been of; entrance hall, kitchen, 

bedrooms, lounge and bathrooms.

• Where provided doors to the internal escape route appear to comply with current 

standards.                                                                                                                                                              

• Alternative means of escape are provided via external stairs to the

communal flat roofs and a place of ultimate safety.                                                                                      

• Domestic smoke detectors are provided.

As a compensatory feature in respect of internal configuration; consideration 

should be given to installing/upgrading a fire alarm system to BS 5839 pt 6 

category LD2 grade D. CoL should undertake a strategic review of 

management protocols regarding tenants/leaseholders actions which may 

have implications to the overall fire safety of the premises.

Lambert Jones Mews, Postern Priority-D 3Months  Low Housing Property Services Completed Further specialist detailed Fire 

Management Survey is being carried 

out. Initial surveys suggest that many of 

the improvements identified in the 

FRA's are unnecessary and are 

mitigated by the design of the building. 

Management protocols have been 

reviewed and deemed satisfactory. 

Installation of alarm systems not 

deemed appropriate.

Barbican Estate • Visual inspection of compartmentation between neighbouring dwellings (via walls and 

ceilings) did not identify any obvious areas of concern.

• Vertical service risers which serve 2 dwellings may be present; residents/contractors 

potentially access these enclosures for the purposes of alterations/maintenance to

services.

Consideration should be given to the targeted inspection of a sample of

dwellings to undertake Type 4 fire risk assessments; to address specific areas 

of concern.

Lambert Jones Mews & Postern Priority-D 3Months  Low Housing Property Services 30-Sep-21 £5,000 Low risk - compartmentation survey to be 

undertaken as part of inspection process. 

Barbican Estate • Alternative means of escape are provided via communal balconies Consideration should be given to upgrading/replacing doors on a single means 

of escape route to achieve compliance with current standards. Where the 

opportunity for means of escape in 2 directions is available; this situation is 

considered acceptable. Consideration should be given to upgrading/replacing 

doors on the means of escape routes; to current

 Thomas More House Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services 31-Mar-23 £20million Destructive testing of front entrance 

doors confirm that they are generally 

not up to modern standard. Capital Bid 

made for funding to replace all doors.

Barbican Estate Whilst emergency action notices were provided, it not considered that sufficient signs 

are displayed in prominent positions throughout the car park.

Ensure appropriate signs are displayed. All car parks Priority-C 28 days Medium Housing Property Services 30-Nov-21 £120,000 Included in Fire Signage Improvement 

Programme - work underway.

Barbican Estate It was noted; That fire doors to protected escape routes do not consistently display ‘fire 

door keep shut’ signage’.                                                                                                                   

•Doors to plant rooms, service cupboards and similar do not consistently display ‘fire 

door keep locked’ signage.

Ensure appropriate signs are displayed. All car parks Priority-D 3 Months  Medium Housing Property Services 30-Nov-21 £120,000 Included in Fire Signage Improvement 

Programme - work underway.

Barbican Estate Whilst adequate compensatory lighting is provided; it was not possible to determine 

whether adequate emergency escape lighting is provided to escape routes.

A survey should be undertaken by a competent person; with any identified 

issues being rectified to ensure the system complies with BS 5266.

All car parks Priority-E Project Planning Medium Housing Property Services Completed N/A Emergency lighting maintenance 

contract in place.

P
age 42



v.April 2019 

 

Committees: 
Barbican Estate Residents Consultation Committee - 
for information 
Barbican Residential Committee - for information 
 

Dates: 

14 June 2021 
 
28 June 2021 

Subject:  
Barbican Fire Door Replacement Programme 
 
Unique Project Identifier: 

12262  

Gateway 2 

Regular 
Progress Report 
 

Report of: 

Director of Community & Children's Services 

For Information 

Report Author:  
Jason Hayes, Head of Major Works 

PUBLIC 
 

 
 

1. Status update 
Project Description: This project proposes a programme of 
works to replace all fire rated doors (including any associated 
panel surrounds, fanlight windows, refuse cupboards and intake 
cupboards) within the residential blocks of the Barbican Estate 
to ensure that they meet the requirements of the current Building 
Regulations in relation to fire safety. 

RAG Status: Green 

Risk Status: Low  

Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk): 
£20,000,000  

Spend to Date: £0 

Costed Risk Provision Utilised: N/A  

2. Key points to note 
Next Gateway: Gateway 3/4 

Key Points:  

1. Since passing Gateway 2, a tender exercise has been 
completed to complete a full survey of the site. 

2. The survey will identify: 

• Which doors require to be fire doors under current 
Building Regulations 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



v.April 2019 

• An exact number of doors within the scope of the work 

• Identify any common types of door sets and group them 
into risk categories that will lead the programme for 
replacement 

• Explore any additional compartmentation issues that 
support the fire doors 

  

3. The DCCS Major Works Team is currently under-resourced 
having recently had two Project Managers leave the team.  

 

3. Reporting period 
 

 March 2021 to present. 
 
 

4. Progress to date 
 

1. Following the approval of the Gateway 2 report, a brief has 
been produced to procure a specialist door consultant with the 
appropriate accreditations such as BM Trada. This tendered 
exercise completed on 28th May and returns are being 
evaluated. It is expected that this work will start in July. 
 
2. A brief has been produced for a communications consultant 
and this tender exercise is due to complete in July.  
 
3. Although design team costs have been sought, a full survey 
would allow for a more competitive cost with more 
comprehensive information available to tender by. The brief is 
still in preparation whilst the survey results are being completed. 
 
6. The DCCS Major Works Team is currently under-resourced 
having recently had two Project Managers leave the team to 
pursue other opportunities. Recruitment of replacement staff is 
ongoing, but it can be a lengthy process to identify and appoint 
suitably qualified candidates who may be contractually required 
to see out extended notice periods. The appointment of an 
external interim Project Manager to cover the recruitment period 
for permanent staff may be considered. 
 
 

5. Next steps 
 

 
1. Complete full survey and audit of fire doors and 

supporting compartmentation. 
2. Procure Communications Consultant. 
3. Complete design brief and procure Design Team 

including Heritage Consultant, Planning Consultant and 
Fire Engineer. 

4. Consult with London Fire Brigade Heritage Team and 
other third-party stakeholders regarding the project and 
proposals. 

5. Gateway 3-4 Report 

Page 44



v.April 2019 

 
 
 
Appendices 
 

Appendix  None 

 
Contact 
 

Report Author Jason Hayes 

Email Address Jason.hayes@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Telephone Number 0207 332 3768 

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



 

v.April 2019 

 

Committees: 
Corporate Projects Board [for information] 
Barbican Estate Residents Consultation Committee [for 
information] 
Barbican Residential Committee [for decision] 
Projects Sub [for decision] 
 

Dates: 

04 May 2021 
07 June 2021 
 
28 June 2021 
28 July 2021 

Subject:  
Communal Repairs & Redecoration Programme for the 
Barbican Estate (2015-2020) 
 
Unique Project Identifier: 

11485 

Gateway 6: 
Outcome Report 
Regular 

Report of: 
Director of Community & Children's Services 

For Decision 

Report Author:  
David Downing, Asset Programme Manager 
 

 

PUBLIC 

 

 
 
Summary 
 

1. Status update Project Description: A five year programme of works 
encompassing the cyclical redecoration of internal common 
parts, external common parts or both (as required) of the 
identified blocks of the Barbican Estate. Redecoration in this 
context applies to the cleaning, sanding and repair of 
previously decorated surfaces, followed by the application of 
coatings (undercoats, paints and varnishes) as may be 
required to achieve the desired finish upon those surfaces.   

RAG Status: Green (Green at last report to committee) 

Risk Status: Low (Low at last report to committee) 

Costed Risk Provision Utilised: N/A 

Final Outturn Cost: £1,735,329.15 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



 

v.April 2019 

 

2. Next steps and 
requested 
decisions  

Requested Decisions:  

Barbican Estate Residents Consultation Committee 

1. To note the content of this report for information only. 

Projects Sub Committee and Barbican Residential 
Committee 

1. To note the content of this report, 

2. To note the lessons learnt, 

3. To authorise closure of this project. 

3. Key conclusions 1. External redecorations to thirteen blocks out of the intended 
thirteen blocks were completed as planned.  

2. Internal redecorations to two out of the intended eight blocks 
were completed. Six blocks were omitted from the contract 
following the City’s public commitment to replace of all internal 
residential front doors (with associated surrounds) and 
communal fire doors as a response to the Grenfell tragedy 
which occurred part way through the delivery of this 
programme. The redecoration of items identified for short term 
replacement was not deemed value for money. 

3. The works that were completed were delivered £184,749.60 
under budget once adjustments are included for the omitted 
works. Of this sum, £99,457.76 being unused provisional sums 
within the works contract, and a further £85,291.84 being 
unused allocation for fees and staff costs. The works which 
were completed were delivered to the timescales envisaged. 

4. The contractor, K&M McLoughlin Decorating Ltd, performed 
well throughout and were proactive in working with the City’s 
project management team to deliver the works within the 
agreed budget and to complete the redecorations to the high 
standards required to satisfy heritage constraints and the 
expectations of residents. The direct appointment again of a 
similar SME redecoration specialist rather than a larger 
contract management company is recommended for future 
works of this nature. 

5. A tendered five year programme of works provided value for 
money seeing a reduction in management costs and tendered 
works costs when compared to procuring contracts on either a 
block by block basis or over a shorter time period. This 
approach is recommended for future redecorations 
programmes. 

 

Page 48



 

v.April 2019 

 

Main Report 
 

Design & Delivery Review 
 

4. Design into 
delivery  

The project design worked well. Developing a project 
encompassing a five year contract allowed for works to be 
delivered to a consistently high standard, provided cost surety 
throughout the programme and allowed for management costs to 
be minimised. The project design is recommended for future 
projects of this nature. 
  

5. Options 
appraisal 

The selected option to procure a contractor to deliver a three-five 
year programme of redecorations via open tender successfully 
delivered the projects objectives. The rejected option was to 
procure a series of one year contracts.  
 
No changes were required during project delivery. 
 

6. Procurement 
route 

Works were procured via open tender advertised on the Capital 
Esourcing portal and produced a suitable and manageable number 
of qualifying bids for the contract. 
 

7. Skills base The City of London project team had the required skills and 
experience to manage the delivery of the project. An external Clerk 
of Works was employed to monitor contractor progress and to 
provide quality assurance. The utilisation of a Clerk of Works 
(whether utilising internal or external resource) is recommended for 
future projects of this nature. 
 

8. Stakeholders Stakeholders were engaged and managed well throughout the 
delivery of the project. Liaison between the City’s Project Manager 
and the Barbican Estate’s House Groups was critical to the 
successful delivery of the project. 
 

 
Variation Review 
 

9. Assessment 
of project 
against key 
milestones 

The project progressed as expected throughout the development 
period. There was a significant delay following procurement 
however as the value of the successful tender submission was in 
advance of the approved budget estimates at Gateway 3/4. An 
Issues Report was required to secure a budget uplift and allow the 
project to proceed.  
 
The main works contractor was appointed in April 2016 as 
anticipated at Gateway 5. During the delivery phase, the fixed term 
contract ran as expected for the five year duration without variation 

Page 49



 

v.April 2019 

 

barring the omittance of internal works to six blocks as detailed in 
the following section. 
 

10. Assessment 
of project 
against Scope 

Following the tragic fire at Grenfell House in June 2017, the City 
made a public commitment to embark on an enhanced fire door 
replacement programme to bring all front doors up to a 60 minute 
fire resistance standard where possible. Following this 
commitment, all remaining internal redecorations, of which front 
doors to residences (and their associated surrounds) and 
communal fire doors formed a major part, were removed from the 
contract. The redecoration of items subject to short term 
replacement was not deemed value for money. Equally, other 
internal areas through which deficient doors would be removed 
and replacement doors brought in would be at significant risk of 
damage to surface finishes and would likely need further 
redecoration at the conclusion of the fire door replacements; again, 
it was not deemed value for money for internal works to proceed.  
 
The internal redecoration of the following six blocks were therefore 
omitted from the contract: Gilbert House, Willoughby House, 
Bunyan House, Cromwell Tower, Speed House and Defoe House. 
They are to be rescheduled within future programmes as soon as 
appropriate. 
 
The rest of the works included within this programme were 
successfully completed as planned. 
 

11. Risks and 
issues 

With exception of the necessary omission of the internal works to 
the six blocks as detailed above, the project proceeded as planned 
with no significant risks realised during the delivery phase. This is 
largely attributable to the successful application of lessons learnt 
from previous redecoration projects which were incorporated into 
the project design and specification which greatly aided the 
management of the resultant contract.  
 
Costed Risk Provision was not applicable to this project. 
 

12. Transition to 
BAU 

The ongoing maintenance of external and internal surfaces will 
transfer to the general Barbican Estate Repairs & Maintenance 
contract. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 

v.April 2019 

 

Value Review 
 

13. Budget   

Estimated 
Outturn Cost (G2) 

Estimated cost (including risk): 
£1,500,000 - £2,000,000 
 

 
The Gateway 2 projected cost was estimated in 2014 with no 
provision for cost inflation. The officer managing the project at this 
time is no longer with the City and the estimating methodology they 
used is not known. 
 
 

 At Authority to 
Start work (G5) 

Final Outturn Cost 

Fees £121,000.00 £84,111.25 

Staff Costs £131,438.75 £83,035.66 

Works £2,019,510.00 £1,568,182.24 

Total £2,271,948.75 £1,735,329.15 

 
There is a total underspend on the approved Gateway 5 budget of 
£536,619.60. Of this sum, £351,870 is accounted for by the 
omission from the contract of internal works to six blocks as 
detailed above. A further £85,291.84 is attributable to underspend 
on the fees and staff cost estimates. The remaining £99,457.76 is 
attributable to unspent provisional sums for minor repair works to 
blocks where redecoration works were completed. 
 
To produce a meaningful comparison between Gateway 5 
projections and the eventual outturn cost, an adjusted G5 figure 
(deducting the tendered sums for the omitted works) can be used. 
 

 Adjusted G5 total 
after omittances 

Final Outturn Cost 

Fees £121,000.00 £84,111.25 

Staff Costs £131,438.75 £83,035.66 

Works £1,667,640.00 £1,568,182.24 

Total £1,920,078.75 £1,735,329.15 

 
Using the adjusted Gateway 5 budget, there is therefore a total 
project underspend of £184,749.60. 
 
Final accounts have been subject to an independent verification 
check, undertaken by a suitably experienced officer within the 
relevant implementing department. 
 

Page 51



 

v.April 2019 

 

14. Investment N/A 
 

15. Assessment 
of project 
against 
SMART 
objectives 

1. A rolling programme of communal repair and redecoration work 
to preserve the buildings, comply with legal requirements and 
ensure resident satisfaction was established. 
 
2. A better value contract through procuring for a minimum of 3 
years, with an opportunity to extend to 5 years, was achieved. 
 

16. Key benefits 
realised 

1. The buildings of the residential Barbican Estate are being 
maintained to a very high standard. 
 
2. Value for money for Barbican Estate leaseholders is being 
secured via the procurement of longer term contracts which deliver 
economies of scale and reduced management costs. 
 

 
Lessons Learned and Recommendations 
 

17. Positive 
reflections  

1. Works were done to a high standard, satisfying the 
heritage constraints of the Barbican Estate and the 
expectations of residents, were delivered well within the 
approved Gateway 5 budget and to the timescales envisaged. 
 
2. The contractor, K&M McLoughlin Decorating Ltd, 
performed well and were proactive in working with the City’s 
project management team to keep costs under control and to 
deliver the works within the agreed budget. As a specialist 
SME, the Barbican Estate works were a key contract for this 
supplier who demonstrated this via their clear commitment 
and diligence in delivering the works. 
 
3. Procuring works as a five year programme delivered 
demonstrable value for money. This can be clearly evidenced 
by comparing the tendered cost of works to blocks within this 
contract with the historical costs of tendering in far smaller 
packages. For example, prior to this contract, redecorations 
to the exterior of Cromwell Tower were completed in the 
financial year 2015/16 by the same contractor K&M 
McLoughlin. These were tendered for in a package with 
redecoration works to Frobisher Crescent only. The tendered 
cost of works for Cromwell Tower were £276,591.09. Works 
to the same specification were tendered the following year to 
Lauderdale Tower & Shakespeare Tower as part of the Year 
1 works of the now complete five year contract. The tendered 
cost of works from the same contractor were £231,151.00 for 
Lauderdale Tower and £210,951.00 for Shakespeare Tower. 

Page 52



 

v.April 2019 

 

The decrease in tendered works costs apparent across 
broadly similar buildings over a short period of time in an 
inflating market strongly suggests that significant savings on 
works costs can be made by procuring in bulk.  
 

18. Improvement 
reflections 

1. Budget estimates at Gateway 3/4 significantly undervalued 
the project (by £584,450) which led to delays following 
procurement as additional approvals were required from 
Committee to proceed. Estimates for future projects should 
be refined and presented with a more conservative 
confidence range. 
 
2. As recurring cyclical works, some consideration could be 
given at Corporate level as to whether such repeat pieces of 
work should be treated as Business as Usual and not 
required to go through the full project development cycle as 
each redecoration contract nears expiry. In project 
management terms a repeat piece of work cannot by 
definition be a project; perhaps an alternative oversight and 
approval model would be appropriate for cyclical work 
governance. 
 

19. Sharing best 
practice 

1. Dissemination of key information through team and project 
staff briefings.  

2. Lessons learned have been logged and recorded on 
departmental SharePoint.  

 

20. AOB N/A 
 
 

 
 
 
Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 Project Coversheet 

 
Contact 
 

Report Author David Downing 

Email Address david.downing@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Telephone Number 020 7332 1645 

 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



V14 July 2019 

 

Project Coversheet 
[1] Ownership & Status 

UPI: 11485 
Core Project Name: Communal Repairs & Redecoration Programme for the 
Barbican Estate (2015-2020) 
Programme Affiliation (if applicable): None 
Project Manager:  David Downing 
Definition of need: A five year programme of works encompassing the 
redecoration of internal common parts, external common parts or both (as 
required) of the identified blocks of the Barbican Estate. Redecoration in this 
context applies to the cleaning, sanding and repair of previously decorated 
surfaces, followed by the application of coatings (undercoats, paints and 
varnishes) as may be required to achieve the desired finish upon those surfaces.   
Key measures of success:  
1. Deliver a rolling programme of communal repair and redecoration work to 
preserve the buildings, comply with legal requirements and ensure resident 
satisfaction. 
2. Achieve a better value contract through procuring for a minimum of 3 years, with 
an opportunity to extend to 5 years. 
Expected timeframe for the project delivery: April 2015 – March 2020 
Key Milestones: Project Complete 
Are we on track for completing the project against the expected timeframe for 
project delivery? Yes 

Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the 
City of London has needed to manage or is managing? No 
  

 
 

[2] Finance and Costed Risk 

Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes:  
 

‘Project Briefing’ G1 report (as approved by Chief Officer 02/10/2014):  

• Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £1,500,000 - £2,000,000 

• Costed Risk Against the Project: N/A 

• Estimated Programme Dates: April 2015 – March 2020 
 
Scope/Design Change and Impact: None 

‘Project Proposal’ G2 report (as approved by PSC 08/10/2014): 

• Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £1,500,000 - £2,000,000 

• Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): £14,000 

• Spend to date: £0 

• Costed Risk Against the Project: N/A 

• CRP Requested: N/A 

• CRP Drawn Down: N/A 

• Estimated Programme Dates: April 2015 – March 2020 
 
Scope/Design Change and Impact: None 

 ‘Options Appraisal and Design’ G3-4 report (as approved by PSC 
21/01/2015): 

• Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £1,350,000 - £1687,500 

• Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): £8,000 

Page 55



V14 July 2019 

 

• Spend to date: £0 

• Costed Risk Against the Project: N/A 

• CRP Requested: N/A 

• CRP Drawn Down: N/A 

• Estimated Programme Dates: April 2015 – March 2020 
 
Scope/Design Change and Impact: None 
 

Issues Report (as approved by PSC 11/05/2016) 

• Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £2,271,950.00 

• Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): £2,249,960 

• Spend to date: £7,782 

• Costed Risk Against the Project: N/A 

• CRP Requested: N/A 

• CRP Drawn Down: N/A 

• Estimated Programme Dates: May 2016 – Summer 2020 
 
Scope/Design Change and Impact: Successful tender exceeded approved budget 
at Gateway 4. An Issues Report was required to approve the award of the tender 
with an associated budget uplift. 
 

‘Authority to start Work’ G5 report (as approved by Chief Officer 18/05/2016): 

• Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £2,271,948.75 

• Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): £2,249,948.75 

• Spend to date: £7,782 

• Costed Risk Against the Project: N/A 

• CRP Requested: N/A 

• CRP Drawn Down: N/A 

• Estimated Programme Dates: May 2016 – Summer 2020 
 
Scope/Design Change and Impact: None 

 

 
Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: £0 

 Programme Affiliation [£]: N/A  
 

 
 

 
 

Page 56



v.April 2019 

 

Committees: 
Barbican Estate Residents Consultation Committee - 
for information 
Barbican Residential Committee - for information 
 

Dates: 

14 June 2021 
 
28 June 2021 

Subject:  

Barbican Estate Redecoration Programme 2020-25 

Unique Project Identifier: 

Unique Project Identifier: 12035  

Gateway 5 

Regular 
Progress Report 
 

Report of: 

Director of Community & Children's Services 

For Information 

Report Author:  
David Downing, Asset Programme Manager 

PUBLIC 
 

 
 

1. Status update 
Project Description: This project addresses the cyclical 
redecoration of internal and external areas of the residential 
blocks of the Barbican Estate as identified for the next five 
financial years of the redecorations programme. 

RAG Status: Amber 

Risk Status: Low  

Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk): £3,884,630  

Spend to Date: £26,694 

Costed Risk Provision Utilised: N/A  

2. Key points to note 
Next Gateway: Gateway 6 – Outcome Report 

Key Points:  

1. Since passing Gateway 5 in Summer 2020 the project has 
been on hold due to the Covid 19 public health crisis. 

2. Although Gateway 5 was passed contracts were not 
exchanged with the contractor as a second wave of the virus 
was strongly (and correctly) predicted that would have disrupted 
any mobilisation and would likely have exposed the City and 
leaseholders to increased costs. 

  

Page 57

Agenda Item 10



v.April 2019 

3. The Construction Industry in general has been subject to 
significant price inflation following Brexit and the public health 
crisis. 

4. Despite this, the successful contractor, K&M McLoughlin 
Decorating Ltd have continued to hold their prices and have 
accepted that residential front doors (and associated surrounds) 
are to be omitted from the contract, with an associated reduction 
in price, as these items are scheduled for short term 
replacement. 

5. On consultation, resident members of the Asset Maintenance 
Working Party support the award of this contract at this time. 
Requests from House Groups to omit less-travelled areas from 
internal redecorations to realise further cost reduction will be 
happily considered. 

6. The DCCS Major Works Team is currently under-resourced 
having recently had two Project Managers leave the team. 
Recruitment of replacement staff is ongoing but may require the 
appointment of an external interim Project Manager to minimise 
the delay in re-commencing the project. Delivery of the project 
will not start until sufficient experienced project management 
and oversight is in place. 

 

3. Reporting period 
 

July 2020 to present. 
 
 

4. Progress to date 
 

1. Following the approval of an Issues Report, first presented to 
the Barbican Residential Committee on 16 March 2020 and 
subsequently approved on 26 May 2020, and with the national 
restrictions enforced during the first wave of the ongoing Covid 
19 public health crisis significantly relaxed, this project was 
approved at Gateway 5 – Authority to Start Work in August 2020 
in anticipation of the potential opportunity to commence work. 
 
2. However, the widely forecast prospect of a significant second 
wave of Covid infection during the Autumn and Winter months 
of 2020 resulted in the contract award for the Redecorations 
Programme being placed on hold. Although the works are 
deemed essential in maintaining the fabric of the buildings and 
the high aesthetic standard demanded for the Estate, it was 
determined, on clear direction from the Barbican Estate Office 
that only works with a clear health and safety element should 
proceed to minimise risk to residents, staff and contractors. 
 
3. As the second national lockdown began to be eased in Spring 
2021, Officers, due to the length of time passed from the initial 
procurement (which took place in October/November 2019) 
began to consider whether the contract, as procured, still 
represented value for money, especially as plans to replace 

Page 58



v.April 2019 

Barbican Estate fire doors had advanced significantly in the 
interim. The Fire Door Replacement Programme would 
necessarily see the redecoration of residents’ front doors (and 
associated surrounds) omitted from the redecorations contract 
as there is little value or utility in expending resource decorating 
that which is scheduled for short-term replacement. An analysis 
of market conditions revealed that re-tendering at this time was 
far from favourable as the twin impacts of Brexit and the ongoing 
pandemic were causing significant inflationary pressures on 
both materials and labour costs. In particular, contractors 
previously reliant on EU nationals for a substantial proportion of 
their workforce were forecast to be particularly exposed.  
 
4. Following negotiation, the successful contractor from the late 
2019 procurement, K&M McLoughlin Decorating Ltd agreed to 
continue to hold their prices and have accepted that once in 
contract, the omittance of residential front doors scheduled for 
replacement will be instructed with an appropriate reduction in 
price resulting. K&M McLoughlin have advised that they are less 
exposed to rising labour costs as some because of their 
predominantly British sourced work force, however they are 
facing inflationary pressures on materials as per the rest of the 
industry. In light of this, and the further expense and time 
required to re-procure and re-consult with Barbican Estate 
leaseholders, the benefit of proceeding with the deferred 
contract with K&M are compelling.  
 
5. On consultation, resident members of the Asset Maintenance 
Working Party have indicated support for the award of this 
contract to K&M McLoughlin at this time. The Working Party has 
suggested that prior to works starting on a given block, 
consultation with House Groups should be undertaken to 
ascertain residents’ priorities and identify cost savings where 
appropriate. Whereas works to external areas will continue to be 
re-decorated as per manufacturers recommended product 
lifecycles, the potential to defer less-travelled areas from internal 
redecorations to realise cost reduction will be happily 
considered. 
 
6. The DCCS Major Works Team is currently under-resourced 
having recently had two Project Managers leave the team to 
pursue other opportunities. Recruitment of replacement staff is 
ongoing, but it can be a lengthy process to identify and appoint 
suitably qualified candidates who may be contractually required 
to see out extended notice periods. The appointment of an 
external interim Project Manager to cover the recruitment period 
for permanent staff may be considered to minimise the delay in 
re-commencing the project. The delivery of the project will not 
start until sufficient experienced project management and 
oversight is in place. 

Page 59



v.April 2019 

 
 

5. Next steps 
 

 
1. Exchange contracts with K&M McLoughlin Decorating Ltd and 
confirm year one programme. 
 
2. Resolve staffing resource issue and appoint a replacement 
Project Manager (or either a permanent or interim basis). 
 
3. Commence Project Delivery. 
 

 
 
 
Appendices 
 

Appendix  None 

 
Contact 
 

Report Author David Downing 

Email Address david.downing@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Telephone Number 0207 332 1645 

 

Page 60



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Residents Consultation Committee – For comment  
Barbican Residential Committee – For decision 

14 June 2021 
28 June 2021 
 

Subject: Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores – 
Annual Review 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

1 and 4 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? £ 

What is the source of Funding?  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

 

Report of: Andrew Carter, Director of Community and 
Children's Services 

For Decision 

Report author: Michael Bennett, Head of Barbican 
Estates 

 
Summary 

 
The context for the review of the Charging Policy for Car Parking and Stores on the 
Barbican Estate includes the following: 
 

• Expenditure on car parking on the Barbican Estate has for some years 
exceeded income; 

• The Barbican car parks are underused with a large number of vacant car 
parking spaces that have been put to much better use (such as the provision of 
storage units for residents); 

• The City Corporation has agreed budget envelopes that each of the service 
committees will use to deliver their services in 2021/22. These budget 
envelopes will help the City of London Corporation (the Corporation) achieve 
an average saving in Corporation funding of 12% across the City Fund and City 
Cash budgets for 2021/22. 

 
At its meeting in June 2020, the BRC received a report on the Charging Policy for Car 
Parking and Stores on the Barbican Estate.  The Committee agreed a number of 
reviews and that the Member/Officer Working Party consider further, before bringing 
a report back for an annual review to the BRC.  The Working Party has reviewed and 
made recommendations for the 2021-2022 year and, this report comprises an 
overview of its considerations and its recommendations.      
 

Recommendation(s) 

The Barbican Residential Committee is asked to endorse the work and 
recommendations of the Member/Officer Working Party and specifically, to: 
 
Car Parking 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 11



1. Pause the Barbican car park charge per parking space for the ensuing year at 
£1,420 per annum and subject to review again in 2022. 

 
2. To increase the miscellaneous charges by 5% for motorcycles (to £255), bicycle 

lockers (to £96), bicycle pods (to £34), Temporary Car Parking (to £11.00) and 
subject to review again in 2022. 

 
3. The Barbican car park charge per premium parking space for the ensuing year be 

£2,130 per annum (based on 1.5 of the current charge for a standard car bay), 
subject to review in 2022. 

 
Stores 
 
4. Increase the rents for Stores within Barbican buildings (that is, Stores not 

constructed in the car parks which are all classed as small/standard Stores) for the 
ensuing year to £27.50 per square foot per annum and subject to review again in 
2022.  

 
5. To increase rents for the resident new Stores in the car parks for the ensuing 

year by 5% to £21.30 per square foot per annum and subject to review again in 
2022. 

 
6. To increase rents for the non-resident new Stores in the car parks for the 

ensuing year by 5% to £42.60 including vat per square foot per annum and subject 
to review again in 2022. 

 
7. To increase rents for the original resident Stores in the car parks for the ensuing 

year by 5% to £21.00 per square foot per annum and subject to review again in 
2022. 

 
Main Report 

Background 
 
1. Expenditure on car parking on the Barbican Estate has for some years significantly 

exceeded income.  In 2017 Members also agreed that a Member/Officer Working 
Party be established to carry out further work on the Charging Policy, bringing 
reports back to the BRC. 

 
2. At its meeting in June 2020 the BRC approved the following: 

 
Car Parking 
 

• The Barbican car park charge per parking space for the ensuing year be 
increased to £1,420 per annum, subject to review in 2021. 

 
Stores 

 

• Rents for Stores within Barbican buildings (that is, Stores not constructed in the 
car parks which are all classed as small/standard Stores) be increased in line 

Page 62



with CPI (based on 22 April CPI of 1.5%) to £331 per annum and subject to 
review again in 2021. 
 

• Rents for the resident occupiers of new stores in the car parks be increased in 
line with CPI (based on 22 April CPI of 1.5%) to £873 per annum for large 
stores, £1,238 for extra-large and £1,746 for extra extra-large stores and 
subject to review again in 2021. 
 

• Rents for the non-resident occupiers of new stores in the car parks be increased 
in line with CPI (based on 22 April CPI of 1.5%) to £1,746 per annum for large 
stores, £2,476 for extra-large and £3,492 for extra extra-large stores and 
subject to review again in 2021. 
 

• Miscellaneous Charges be increased in line with CPI (based on 22 April CPI of 
1.5%) to £243 per annum for motorcycles, £91 per annum for bicycle lockers 
and £32 per annum for bicycle pods and subject to review again in 2021. 

 
Other Reviews 

 

3. The Working Party also considered the introduction of Premium Car Parking bays.  
 
4. The members of the Working Party are: 
 

• Michael Hudson (Chairman) – Chairman of the BRC 

• Mark Wheatley – Deputy Chairman of the BRC 

• Randall Anderson – Resident Member of the BRC 

• John Tomlinson – Resident Member of the BRC 

• David Bradshaw - Resident Member of the BRC 

• Paul Murtagh – Assistant Director Barbican & Property Services 

• Michael Bennett – Head of Barbican Estates 
 
  Current Position 

 

5. This report comprises an overview of the considerations and recommendations of 
the Working Party.      

 
Options 
 
Car Parking 
 
6. The Working Party took into consideration a number of factors with regards to Car 

Park charges: 
 

• Occupancy history (see Appendix 1); 
 

• Elasticity of demand (see Appendix 2); 
 

• The reason for the establishment of the Working Party; i.e. the deficit on the car 
park account and the objective of raising revenue so as to reduce the deficit. 
 

Page 63



7. There were two options for car park charges: 
 

• Pause the Barbican car park charge per parking space for the ensuing year at 
£1,420 per annum and subject to review again in 2022; 

 

• Increase Barbican car park charge per parking space for the ensuing year to 
£1,500 per annum (as originally agreed at BRC in 2018 as the direction of travel 
to £1,500 over 3 years) and subject to review again in 2022.  

 
Stores 
 

8. The Working Party also took into consideration a number of factors with regards to 
Store rents: 

  

• Occupancy schedules for current and new stores (see appendices 3 and 4); 
 
9. The options for Store rents for Stores within Barbican buildings (that is, 

Stores not constructed in the car parks which are all classed as small/standard 
Stores) were: 

 

• Pause at £25.46 per square foot per annum (£331) and subject to review again 
in 2022; 

 

• Increase for the ensuing year to £27.50 per square foot (£358) as originally 
proposed at BRC in 2018 and subject to review again in 2022.  

 
10. The options for rents for the resident occupiers of new stores in the car parks 

are: 
  

• Pause at £20.30 per square foot per annum (see appendix 3 for current sizes 
and charges) and subject to review again in 2022; 

 

• Increase for the ensuing year by 5% to £21.30 per square foot per annum to 
£916 per annum for large stores, £1,300 for extra large and £1,832 for extra 
extra large stores and subject to review again in 2022. 

 
11. The options for rents for the non-resident occupiers of new stores in the car 

parks were: 
 

• Pause at £40.60 per square foot per annum including VAT (see appendix 3 for 
current sizes and charges) and subject to review again in 2022; 

 

• Increase for the ensuing year by 5% to £42.60 per square foot per annum to 
£1,832 per annum for large stores, £2,600 for extra large and £3,664 for extra 
extra large stores and subject to review again in 2022. 
 

12. The options for rents for the resident occupiers of original stores in the car 
parks were: 

 

Page 64



• Pause at £20.00 per square foot per annum (see appendix 4 for current sizes 
and charges) and subject to review again in 2022; 
 

• Increase for the ensuing year by 5% to £21.00 per square foot per annum to 
£672 per annum for Transportable stores and £861 for Large stores and subject 
to review again in 2022. 

 
Miscellaneous Charges 
 
13. The options for miscellaneous charges in the car parks are: 
 

• Pause the miscellaneous charges for motorcycles, bicycle lockers and pods 
and Temporary Car Parking (see appendix 5) and subject to review again in 
2022; 

 

• Increase for the ensuing year by 5% for motorcycles (to £255), bicycle lockers 
(to £96), bicycle pods (to £34), Temporary Car Parking (to £11.00) and subject 
to review again in 2022.  

 
Premium Car Bays 
 
14. A resident’s survey was conducted to ascertain interest and the scope of that 

survey and key findings are included in Appendix 6. 
 
Proposals from the Working Party 
 
Car Parking 
 
15. Pause the Barbican car park charge per parking space for the ensuing year at 

£1,420 per annum and subject to review again in 2022. 
 
Stores 
 
16. Increase the rents for Stores within Barbican buildings (that is, Stores not 

constructed in the car parks which are all classed as small/standard Stores) for the 
ensuing year to £27.50 per square foot per annum to £358 and subject to review 
again in 2022.  

 
17. Increase rents for the resident new Stores in the car parks for the ensuing year 

by 5% to £21.30 per square foot per annum to £916 per annum for large stores, 
£1,300 for extra large and £1,832 for extra extra large stores and subject to review 
again in 2022. 

 
18. Increase rents for rents for the non-resident occupiers of new stores in the car 

parks for the ensuing year by 5% to £42.60 per square foot per annum to £1,832 
per annum for large stores, £2,600 for extra large and £3,664 for extra extra large 
stores and subject to review again in 2022. 

 

Page 65



19. Increase rents for the resident occupiers of original stores in the car parks for 
the ensuing year by 5% to £21.00 per square foot per annum to £672 per annum 
for Transportable and £861 for Large stores and subject to review again in 2022. 

 
Miscellaneous Charges 

 
20. Increase for the ensuing year by 5% for motorcycles (to £255), bicycle lockers (to 

£96), bicycle pods (to £34), Temporary Car Parking (to £11.00) and subject to 
review again in 2022. 

 
Premium Car Bays 

 
21. A rolling programme for the introduction of new Premium Car Bays into the Car 

Parks based on demand from the resident’s survey.  
 
22. The Barbican car park charge per premium parking space for the ensuing year be 

£2,130 per annum (based on 1.5 of the current charge for a standard car bay), 
subject to review in 2022.  The residents’ consultation produced a suggestion that 
bays be increased by 25 per cent instead of 50 per cent with a corresponding 
charge increase.  However, the space between the pillars in the car parks means 
this is not practical. 

 
Conclusions  (FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE BRC) 
 
23. The Member/Officer Working Party, set up at the instruction of the Barbican 

Residential Committee, has carried an annual review of its work and their 
recommendations are laid out in paragraphs 1-6 of this report.  

 
 
Report Author: 
Michael Bennett, Head of Barbican Estates 
Department of Community and Children's Services 
E: michael.bennett@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
T: 020 70293923  
 

Page 66



Appendix 1 
 
Occupancy History of Barbican Estate Car Parking – February 2021 

   
Charge Date  Residential Let Bays % Change Comments 

£990 June 2006 863 -1%  

£990 Dec 2007 848 -2%  

£990 Oct 2008 820 -3%  

£1,038 Oct 2009 777 -5%  

£1,038 Oct 2010 752 -3%  

£1,070 Oct 2011 744 -1%  

£1,126 Oct 2012 737 -1%  

£1,155 Nov 2013 718 -3%  

£1,183 Nov 2014 691 -4%  

£1,210 Nov 2015 682 -1%  

£1,225 Sept 2016 679 -1%  

£1,225 Nov 2017 648 -5%  

£1,258 
June 2018 653 +1% 

BRC June 2018 - Approved Car Parking charge be increased to 
£1,340 pa for the ensuing year from Sept 2018, subject to review 

after one year. Direction of travel agreed to £1,500 pa over 3 years.  

£1,340 
March 2019 615 -6% 

BRC June 2019 – resolved that the Car Parking Charge of £1,340 pa 
for the ensuing year be paused, subject to one-year review in June 

2020. 

 
£1,420 Mar 2020 626 +2% 

BRC June 2020 - Approved Car Parking charge be increased to 
£1,420 pa for the ensuing year from Sept 2020, subject to review 

after one year.  

 
 

*£1,420 
Feb 21 568 -9% 

From 22 June the Congestion Charge, which covers around one per 
cent of Greater London, will temporarily increase to £15, operate 

07:00-22:00 seven days a week and the residents' discount will be 
closed to new applicants on 1 August. 

 

   

From 25 October 2021, the existing central London Ultra Low 
Emission Zone (ULEZ) will expand to create a single larger zone 

bounded by the North Circular Road (A406) and South Circular Road 
(A205).  

     

*Bold/italics to be reviewed by Barbican Residential Committee. 

 

P
age 67



Appendix 2 
 

Elasticity of Demand – February 2021 

Surrender of Car Bay Licences 

The following table displays the number of new car bay licences taken by residents and the figures for surrendered licences at the Barbican Estate. 

Surrender Reasons – after charge review 

Oct 20 – Feb 21 Car Bays 

Moved out 0 

Too Expensive 0 

Don’t need a Car 0 

No Comment 28 

 

June 20 – Sept 20 New  Surrenders 

Car Bays 119 46 

 

Oct 20 – Dec 20 New  Surrenders 

Car Bays 24 11 

 

Jan 21 – Feb 21 New  Surrenders 

Car Bays 34 17 

 

Surrender of old Stores 

• On surrender no residents confirmed that store surrenders were as a result of rent increase. 

 

 

 

P
age 68



 

Appendix 3  

New Stores rent & occupancy – February 2021 

  
 

Size Rent/Sq. 
ft. 

Resident or 
Non-

resident rent 

Rent Occupancy as of February 2021 

Location Stores Sq. ft. £/sq. ft.  Price from Sept 
2020 

Let Let Non-
BE 

Resident 

Vacant Total % 

Car Park Large 43 20.30 
 

40.60 

Resident 
 

Non-
resident 

*£873 per year 
 

*£1,746 per year  
(inc VAT) 

128  79 207 62 

Car Park Extra 
Large 

61 20.30 
 

40.60 

Resident 
 

Non-
resident 

*£1,238 per year 
 

*£2,476 per year 
(inc VAT) 

48  
 

2 

1 51 98 

Car Park Extra 
Extra 
Large 

86 20.30 
 

40.60 

Resident 
 

Non-
resident 

*£1,746 per year 
 

*£3,492 per year 
(inc VAT) 

49  
 

2 

4 55 93 

 

*Bold/italics to be reviewed by Barbican Residential Committee. 

• Since the start of COVID-19; occupancy of these new stores has remained circa 70% and only a few non-residents have confirmed a new store 

agreement (currently four).  

• There are no residents on the waiting list for stores and the marketing campaign to other City residents within one-half mile of the Barbican Estate was 

completed in March 2020 but has not been repeated. 

 

 

 

P
age 69



 

Appendix 4 

Current Stores rent & occupancy – February 2021 

  
 

Size Rent/sq. ft. Rent Occupancy     

Location Stores Sq. ft. £/sq. ft. Rent from Sept 
2020 

Let Vacant Total % Comments 

Residential 
block 

Standard 13 25.46 *£331 910 73 983 93% BRC June 2018 – Although Working 
Party recommended £27.50/sq.ft 
(£358) - Members approved £25/sq.ft. 
from £24/sq.ft (£313). 
BRC June 2019 – Although Working 

Party recommended £27.50/sq.ft. 
over the next 2 years to £358 (from 
£326 to £336 from September 2019) 
& subject to review again in 2020 - 
Members approved a pause & 
review again in 2020. 
NB Since 2018 BRC decision – loss 
of potential income is £30 to £40K 
pa. 

Car Park Transportable 32 20 *£640 87 19 106 82% BRC June 2018 - New users - rents 
from Sept 2018 - £20 per sq. ft.  
Existing users – 3-year policy: 
£14 per sq. ft. Sept 2018  
£17 per sq. ft. from Sept 2019  
£20 per sq. ft. from Sept 2020 

Car Park Large 41 20 *£820 46 3 49 94% BRC June 2018 - New users - rents 
from Sept 2018 - £20 per sq. ft. 
Existing users - 3-year policy: 
£14 per sq. ft. - Sept 2018 
£17 per sq. ft. from Sept 2019  
£20 per sq. ft. from Sept 2020 

 

*Bold/italics to be reviewed by Barbican Residential Committee. 

P
age 70



 

 
Appendix 5 
 
Miscellaneous charges.     

 
Motorcycle Annual Charges         Bicycle Locker Annual Charges     Bicycle Pods Annual Charges 

Charge Date 

£226 September 2016 

£235 September 2017 

£239 September 2019 

£239* September 2020 

   

 

 

Temporary Car Parking Charges 

Charge Date 

£10.23 September 2017 

£10.45 September 2019 

£10.45* September 2020 

• An increase by RPI was agreed in 2017 

• Charges were not incorporated into 2020 annual review. 

 

*Bold italics to be reviewed by Barbican Residential Committee.  

 

 

Charge Date 

£85 September 2015 

£86 September 2016 

£88 September 2017 

£90 September 2019 

£90* September 2020 

Charge Date 

£30 September 2016 

£30 September 2017 

£30 September 2018 

£31 September 2019 

£31* September 2020 P
age 71



 

Appendix 6 

Premium car bays 

Residents survey April 2021: 

Survey included in our resident’s bulletin which is distributed to circa 1,800 residents. There were 65 responses. 

Question: Would you be interested in a larger bay which would be equivalent to a bay and a half of the current standard bay size? 

Yes – 27. 

Question: The current rental charge of a car bay is £1,420/per annum and the proposals for the Premium Car Parking Bay would be £2,130/per 

annum, would this be of interest to you? 

Yes – 13. Maybe – 10. Those interested that named their current car park were generally all in different car parks.  

Summary of comments: 

• Charging drivers even more. Already overpriced compared to other local secure spaces - additionally these spaces should be seen as a facility 

available to residents - not as a cash raising asset owned by the Corporation. Feels like a money raising exercise. 

• It would also be helpful if the premium bay was closer to resident lift entrances. 

• Nice idea but overpriced. The premium is far too much. Current charges are overpriced. 

• Only of interest if possible to park multiple cars in the enlarged bays. 

• Given the limited take up of bays, why is the intent to charge 1.5 times more for these Premium bays to residents? They don't need to be 50% bigger, 

25% would be fine ie reduce row of 5 spaces to 4.  

• Need to increase uptake. Making them even less affordable than they already are will not help. We need decent sized spaces at a reasonable price.   

• As bays are too narrow for present day cars it seems unreasonable to charge extra to provide what should be the norm. Manufacturers have increased 

car sizes - car park bays should be redesigned. Spaces should be redistributed to make them practical for use with the size of vehicles today. 

• There should be smaller cars not bigger bays. It is wrong to facilitate or encourage owners of large cars. I don't think large vehicle ownership should be 

encouraged. 

 

P
age 72



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Residents Consultation Committee – For comment  
Barbican Residential Committee – For decision 

14 June 2021 
28 June 2021 
 

Subject: Electric Vehicle Charging Update Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

1, 4 and 11 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? £ 

What is the source of Funding?  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

Y/N 

Report of: Andrew Carter, Director of Community and 
Children's Services  

For Decision 

Report author: Michael Bennett, Head of Barbican 
Estates 

 
Summary 

 
This report provides an update on the provision of EV charging points across the 
Barbican Estate Car Parks following the introduction of Phase 1 in 2018 and the 
implementation of Phase 2 to the remaining car parks during Summer 2021. It 
includes the re-introduction of a Residents Working Party via the Residents 
Consultation Committee (RCC) and the ensuing meetings, actions and proposals. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to note, consider and comment on this report. 
  
It is proposed that as part of the implementation of Phase 2 of the new EV charging 
points across the remaining Barbican Estate Car Parks: 
 

• EV users are directly billed per kWh of electricity at 16p/kW by BP 
Chargemaster for electricity at the domestic rate that they use and standing 
charges for electricity per car park location 

 

• maintenance contract charges to be recharged to the Car Park Account subject 
to further comments from the RCC and BRC.  

 
Main Report 

Background 
 

1. In December 2016, a Working Party was established by the Barbican 
Residential Committee to look to pilot the introduction of Electric Vehicle (EV) 
charging points across the Barbican Estate. 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 12



2. In 2018, a pilot of charging points for 30 EV charging bays (Phase 1) which had 
been installed in five car parks on the Barbican Estate (Breton, Bunyan, 
Cromwell Tower, Thomas More and Willoughby), funded by the Low Emission 
Neighbourhood was carried out (funding was for the electrical infrastructure, 
charge points and pilot study which included free electric charging for users). 
 

3. This funding ceased in April 2019 and a charging policy was agreed for current 
users but further work was required on the long-term proposals for an extension 
of EV charging on the Barbican Estate. 
 

4. In Summer 2020 the BEO contacted a number of different grant schemes 
including the Office for Low Emission Vehicles to ascertain the viability of 
securing additional funding via the On-Street Residential Chargepoint Scheme 
for the provision of additional EV charging points on the Barbican Estate (Phase 
2). It was confirmed that applications would be accepted for off-street 
underground car parks. 
 

5. Due to the pandemic and short timescales to put forward applications; Phase 2 
was based on Phase 1 and the original EV Charging Working Party was not 
reconvened. In Autumn 2020, following a number of on-site inspections by the 
potential provider of the scheme; an application to secure funding for the 
remaining Barbican Car Parks (Andrewes, Defoe, Lauderdale and Speed as 
part of Phase 2) for the provision of a further 32 EV charge points was put 
forward. This application included funding for the electrical infrastructure and 
charge points and was fully specified and costed. 
 

6. In Winter 2020, the Phase 2 application based on the fully specified and costed 
proposals was approved and the City received the funding to enable the above 
works. The RCC and BRC were subsequently provided a briefing of the above 
position at their meetings in January and February and the RCC set up a 
Working Party to work with Officers to review the current provision and to 
establish future demand and potential. 

 
Current Position 

 
7. The RCC EV Working Party has met on two occasions in March and May 2021 

and the minutes of those meetings are included at Appendices 1 and 2. 
 
8. A summary of the main areas of discussion and actions at the Working Party 

meetings include: 
 

• Reliability and connectivity for EV users during Phase 1 including the 
implementation of a maintenance contract in conjunction with Phase 2 
(see options below) 

• Pricing and billing including direct billing between the EV user and the 
service provider (see options below) 

• Implementation of an EV user guide and Frequently Asked Questions 
to be agreed with the Working Party  

Page 74



• Physical use of EV charging points including overstaying and random 
parking by users to be managed and monitored by the Estate 
Concierge/Car Park Attendants  

• Availability of EV charging points including website and smartphone 
app. This is a communal facility and not based on the assignment of a 
dedicated EV bay to users   

• Work on Phase 2 has commenced and the scheme for 32 new EV 
chargepoints in Andrewes, Defoe, Lauderdale, and Speed car parks is 
expected to be completed by the end of July 

• It is also anticipated that the above actions will be progressed in 
conjunction with the completion of Phase 2 by the end of July 

• Communications of the above to residents to be agreed with the 
Working Party before the completion of Phase 2 at the end of July 

• Residents questionnaire on the current and future provision of EV 
charging facilities by the Working Party 

  
Options 

 
9. The current charges for EV users was approved in 2019 following the pilot on 

the Estate: 
 

• From October 2019 (or sooner if funding and resources allow) EV users to be 
charged for the electricity they use 
 

• From October 2019 EV users are directly billed per kWh of electricity at 25p/kW 
(14p/kW domestic rate + 11p management levy/kW) 

  
10. Following ongoing discussions with the service provider and a subsequent 

Working Party meeting in early June EV users could be charged directly by BP 
Chargemaster with no intermediation or add-ons by the Barbican Estate Office. 
EV users could be charged for electricity at the domestic rate that they use and 
standing charges for electricity per car park location. A breakdown of a number 
of options are included in Appendix 3. This also shows that EV users would be 
charged for each EV transaction which is based on the same principles of our 
Temporary Car Parking provider RingGo. This change in Charging Policy would 
require the approval of the BRC. 

 
11. A new maintenance contract has been agreed with BP Chargemaster for both 

Phases 1 and 2, which will cost circa £15.5k for the first year with no call out 

charges. Following current trials of a new maintenance contract by BP 

Chargemaster in the UK there is the potential for this to be rolled out across the 

country next year with the estimated costs to reduce to circa £6k per annum.  

12. The main issues would be how these costs could be recovered by the Estate 

Office from EV users. The Working Party considered three options: 

a. Make this a general service charge item, to be recovered from all 

leaseholders 

b. Add these costs as a general charge to the Car Park Account 

c. Recover the charges from EV users  

Page 75



13. The advice from the City Solicitor with regards to the option of recharging 

leaseholders for the maintenance contract charges is that there is no express 

provision in the lease allowing recovery through the service charge. In the 

absence of an express provision, the Corporation would have to fall back on 

the sweeping up clause and it is uncertain whether a Court would allow 

recovery under that clause and other recovery methods should be preferred in 

the circumstances. Using the sweeper clause would almost certainly be 

challenged. 

 

14. Resident members of the Working Party felt that it would seem unlikely that we 

could amortise the circa £15.6k first year’s maintenance charge across the 60 

plus plug in electric vehicles owned by residents. This will result in a charge of 

£250 for each owner. 40% of these users have the opportunity of charging at 

other private locations and may well use them rather than incur such a charge. 

The remaining 60% may be inclined to opt to refuse a licence and find other 

external charging locations. This risks a spiral where fewer and fewer users will 

share a larger and larger proportion of the cost or in which the charge is not 

recovered. This would also likely have the unfortunate effect of disincentivising 

other residents from switching to electric vehicles, thereby undermining the 

City’s efforts in tackling air pollution and the interventions resulting from its 

Climate Action Strategy. 

 
Proposals 

 
15. It is proposed that EV users are directly billed per kWh of electricity at 16p/kW 

by BP Chargemaster for electricity at the domestic rate that they use and  
standing charges for electricity per car park location, as part of the 
implementation of Phase 2 of the new EV charging points. This change in 
Charging Policy would require the approval of the BRC. 

 
16. It is also proposed that maintenance contract charges are recharged to the Car 

Park Account subject to further comments from the RCC and BRC.  
 

Financial implications 

 
17.  The Car Parking account has a budgeted deficit and this deficit will increase 

as a result of this additional recharge of circa £15.5k for the EV maintenance 

contract. 

Conclusion 

 
18. Although Officers have successfully sought funding for the further roll-out of an 

EV charging programme across the Barbican Estate (Phase 2) there have been 
a number of outstanding issues with the original EV provision (Phase 1). The 
re-introduction of a Residents Working Party via the RCC has been working 

Page 76



with Officers to review the current provision and to establish future demand and 
potential. 

 

• Appendix 1 – Residents EV Charging Working Party minutes March 2021  

• Appendix 2 – Residents EV Charging Working Party minutes May 2021 

• Appendix 3 – Options for charging EV users   
 

Report Author: 
Michael Bennett, Head of Barbican Estates 
Department of Community and Children's Services 
E: michael.bennett@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
T: 020 70293923  
 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Appendix 1 

Notes of meeting of Residents EV Charging Working Party with BEO and 

Consultants WSP 
 

BEO 

Michael Bennett 

Barry Ashton 

Muhammed Muhid 

WSP  

Matt Croucher 

Steve Longman 

 

Residents 

Paul Clifford 

John Tomlinson 

Ted Reilly 

Introductions 

Matt Croucher and Steve Longman of WSP were responsible for the original report 

which is on our BaseCamp pages 

Introduction 

The residents outlined the origin of the new Residents EV working party (REVWP), 

which arose from dissatisfaction with the current 

EV offer and alarm that we were going to get more 

of the same from the Phase 2 scheme. We 

learned that the Phase 2 scheme includes 32 new 

chargepoints in Andrewes, Defoe, Lauderdale, 

and Speed carparks, with each phase 2 carpark 

having 4 dual outlet chargers. Implementation of 

Phase 2 could be very quick, but a key uncertainty 

was a long-awaited firm date from UKPN.  

Chargemaster made a 25% contribution to the 

cost of the new installation. We’ll be advised later 

of the contractual relationship between 

Chargemaster and the City in relation to this new 

installation.  

The BEO were asked to share the bid document 

with the REVWP. The BEO will take advice on the possibility of this. 

 

 

Not discussed in the meeting but 

researched later. 

 

The ORCS scheme allows for a 

maximum of 75% of the scheme cost, 

up to a maximum grant of £6,500 per 

chargepoint. It’s probably safe to 

assume our project reached this 

maximum. So together with the 

chargemaster contribution of 25%, 

we’re looking at a total cost of 

around £280,000 for our 32 points. 

 

Page 79



Discussion 

A key point which arose towards the end of the meeting but is better put up-front. This 

phase two project was funded by the Onstreet Residential Chargepoint Scheme. 

(ORCS) Link This cannot be used to fund individual “private” charge points, so could 

not have been diverted for our hoped-for at bay charging.  

We then went through the REVWP’s report, which was submitted to the RCC. 

Reliability 

It seems that most of the reliability issues, which have concerned users arise from 

the Chargemaster’s use of old technology on the existing 30 chargepoints. The new 

Chargemaster points will be linked back to Chargemaster’s operating base via the 

internet and almost all problems will be observed, diagnosed, and potentially fixed 

remotely. There’s lots of “turning it off and turning it on again”. 

The issues of connectivity will be resolved by the BEO installing new routers, near to 

the chargepoints. The existing 30 chargepoints will have this upgrade, together with 

the connectivity fix retrofitted. This will also result in uniform 7KW across the estate 

and the existing key operated chargepoints will be replaced with the RFID. 

The new installation, will include a three year maintenance contract (TBC as 

discussions are ongoing). 

Availability 

• Physical availability: The improved reliability outlined above will enhance 

availability, but there remains the problem of overstaying and random parking. 

There are mechanisms for time-based charging in addition to kWh charging, 

but these are defeated by random parking and unhooking chargers after use. 

The BEO will rely on our CPAs to manage this. 

• Real time availability information: Our consultants ISP were surprised that 

Chargemaster did not currently offer this service. They’re going to follow this 

up. 

Useability (Access). 

The constraints of the geometry of our car parks limits potential solutions to this 

problem. The BEO will be mindful of the problem in the choice of location of new 

installations. 

Pricing and billing 

This is a special area of tension and frustration for residents. It appears that the 

simple solution of establishing a direct relationship between Chargemaster and users 

is ready to be initiated, completely removing any intermediary role for the BEO. It 

seems that this an all-round win for everyone. 

The Questionnaire 

The resident’s EV working party have set up a questionnaire which is live. Right now 

(27 March 2021) there have been over 360 responses. The resident group has 

agreed to share the results of the questionnaire in raw data form both now at and at 

its closure. 

 

Page 80

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/grants-for-local-authorities-to-provide-residential-on-street-chargepoints/grants-to-provide-residential-on-street-chargepoints-for-plug-in-electric-vehicles-guidance-for-local-authorities


The future 

The upgraded management system would in principle enable numbers of chargers to 

be extended at relatively low incremental cost. However, each car park had its own 

physical characteristics which would affect feasibility.  

Many residents have the long-term ambition of at-individual-bay charging. Combining 

the results of the questionnaire with future demand for parking spaces provides a 

likely demand for this option at around 200 users. 

This is a challenge for the BEO and our consultants. 

 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Appendix 2 

EV Charging Working Party 

Meeting Notes 18 May 2021  

BEO 

Michael Bennett 

Barry Ashton 

Muhammed Muhid 

Residents 

Paul Clifford 

Martin Luff 

Ted Reilly 

Agenda 

Existing Facilities 

• Update on Improvements in reliability 

• Update on improvements in availability 

• Update on changes to charging structure 

o Pricing 

o Billing system 

Phase 2 

• Programme of work 

• Communications with residents/house groups 

The questionnaire 

The future 

AOB 

Meeting 

 

Phase 2 and Improvements to Phase 1 operations 

• Programme Work on Phase 2 has commenced and the scheme for 32 new 

chargepoints in Andrewes, Defoe, Lauderdale, and Speed carparks will be 

completed by end July. 

• Improvements in reliability In parallel with the implementation of phase 2 

improvements will be made to the reliability and availability to the 

chargepoints. A new maintenance contract has been agreed with 

Chargemaster, which will enable many repairs to be made on-line. This new 

system will be implemented along with Phase 2 

• User interface. It appears that some problems of reliability and availability 

have arisen from inadequate documentation resulting in user error. Officers 

agreed, with assistance from resident members, to produce a user guide to 

Page 83



reduce user error. Martin Luff (resident member of the WP) has provided a 

draft FAQ for the User Guide. It’s attached to this note. 

• Communications. It was agreed that communications with all residents on 

the implications of the implementation of Phase2 need to be handled 

sensitively and that any significant communications would be passed through 

the WP with a promised half-day turnround by resident members of the WP 

 

Costs, pricing and billing systems 

• Maintenance A new maintenance contract has been agreed with 

Chargemaster, which will cost, for the whole estate around £15,500 for the 

first year and around £6,000 pa thereafter, with no call out charge. It remains 

to be seen how this cost will be recovered. Three options could be 

considered. 

o Make this a general service charge item, to be recovered from all 

leaseholders, 

o Add these costs as a general charge to the carpark account, 

o Recover the charges from EV users only. 

These options will be put to the June RCC/BRC meeting cycle. 

 

• Billing System and cost to users. Users will be charged 14p/kWh directly by 

Chargemaster with no intermediation or add-ons by the BEO. Despite this 

being a win/win all round for Chargemaster, residents and the BEO, this 

change in pricing structure will need to be approved by the June RCC/BRC 

meeting cycle. 

• Real-time availability information.  The provision of availability information 

to users has not yet been resolved. Chargemaster are attempting to include 

our sites in their London wide system with a notice that these sites are private. 

If this fails, we will need to consider establishing our own web porta 

The questionnaire. The questionnaire was now closed with 450 responses. The 

results of the questionnaire will be analysed to help formulate the report to the 

RCC/BRC. 

The Future 

• Phase 3 When Phase 2 is complete we will now have 62 chargepoints and 

around 75 EVs based in our carparks. This may seem a generous provision, 

but there still an opportunity to apply for a further grant which will take our 

total provision of chargepoints up to around 100. This opportunity will be 

monitored. Given the low take up of carparking spaces around the estate, the 

loss of general parking spaces was not thought to be a problem. 

• Individual at-bay charging.  It was acknowledged that this was an aim for a 

significant number of car users. Once the implementation of Phase 2 was 

complete, the infrastructure implications of individual chargepoints would be 

investigated. 

Page 84



Next meeting TBA Early July 

Suggested FAQ’s for users 

• Will I still use my existing swipe card or do I need a new one?  If I need a new 
one, would it cost anything? 

• What if I lose my card?  Who would I report this to in order to cancel it, and 
what would a replacement cost? 

• Is there a subscription or do I just pay as I use the system? 
• Do I pay in advance and top up as needed, or am I billed after use? 
• How often will be bills be sent and by what process (email, post, app, web-

based account)? 
• What information would be on the bill?  Will it show me the dates of usage, 

times I plugged in and unplugged, power drawn per charge? 
• Can I track my usage as I go - e.g., is there an app or online account that will 

show me the time of charge and power used immediately after using the 
system and allow me to see my usage history? 

• Who reviews and sets the kWh rate?  How will we be informed about any 
changes to that rate? 

• If I think my charges are inaccurate or there is a problem, who would l 
contact? 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



APPENDIX 3 OPTIONS FOR CHARGING EV USERS

Month Transactions Standing charge 

(£)

Usage costs 

(£)

Total KW sub total (£) usage cost at £0.14 

per kw (£)

usage cost at 

£0.15 per kw (£)

usage cost at 

£0.16 per kw (£)

Dec-20 160 47.55 0.128 2380 352.13 333.13 356.93 380.72

Jan-21 48 47.75 0.128 676 134.23 94.59 101.35 108.10

Feb-21 64 43.15 0.128 1196 196.18 167.37 179.33 191.28

Mar-21 63 47.75 0.128 740 142.44 103.57 110.97 118.36

Apr-21 188 46.25 0.129 2168 325.87 303.46 325.14 346.81

May-21 135 46.25 0.129 1884 289.35 263.83 282.67 301.52

A charge of £0.35 per transaction billed to EV user

Standing charge for electricity for each car park (based on phase 1 car parks)

Electricity cost for Kilo Watt

Example rates looking to cover costs
Cost across the 5 Current EV Car Parks 

P
age 87



usage cost at 

£0.17 per kw (£)

usage cost at 

£0.18 per kw 

(£)

Maintenance 

Monthly Charges 

(£)

total costs 

per 

month 

(maintena

nce + 

kilowatts 

usage) (£)

usage 

costs at 

£0.75 per 

kw (£)

404.52 428.31 1291.66 1643.79 1784.63

114.86 121.62 1291.66 1425.89 506.74

203.24 215.19 1291.66 1487.84 896.64

125.76 133.16 1291.66 1434.10 554.83

368.49 390.17 1291.66 1617.53 1625.69

320.36 339.20 1291.66 1581.01 1413.35

Example rates looking to cover costs

Example rate look to cover 

Maintenance costs as well

P
age 88



Committee: 
 

Dated: 
 

Barbican Residents Consultation Committee 
Barbican Residential Committee 
 

14 June 2021 
28 June 2021 

Subject:  
Climate Action Strategy – Barbican Residential Estate 
Update 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

5,10,11,12 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding? N/A 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: 
Director of Community and Children’s Services  
 

For Information  

Report author: 
Paul Murtagh 
Assistant Director, Barbican Estate & Property Services 
 

 

Summary 
 
The purpose of this report is to set out the current position of the Barbican Residential 
Estate in relation to the City of London Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy and, to 
inform Members of the opportunities and next steps in progressing towards the 
decarbonisation of the housing stock. 
   

Recommendation 
 
The Committee is asked to note the report. 
 
 
 

Main Report 
 
Background 
 
1. The UK has set in law a target to bring all its greenhouse gas emissions to net zero 

by 2050. To help achieve this target, the government’s ambition is to improve the 
energy efficiency of homes, and move to cleaner ways of heating homes, in order 
to halve the energy use of new buildings by the end of this decade. 
 

2. However, new homes only account for 20% of all the UK’s housing stock so, large 
scale retrofitting is essential to make housing fit for the future. Decarbonising the 

Page 89

Agenda Item 13



UK’s homes is not only an essential part of tackling climate change, it also saves 
residents money, helps combat fuel poverty, boosts the economy and creates jobs. 

 
3. On 8 October 2020, the Court of Common Council approved and adopted the City 

of London Corporation’s (City Corporation) Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027. 
This marked the start of a new and transformative programme of action and, 
adopted three interlinked primary objectives for the City Corporation and the 
Square Mile to: 

 

• support the achievement of net-zero emissions. 

• build resilience. 

• champion sustainable growth. 
 

The City Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 is attached as Appendix 
A to this report. 

 
4. In adopting the Climate Action Strategy (CAS), the City Corporation is committed 

to mitigating the impact of climate change by achieving net-zero emissions for the 
City Corporation and the Square Mile. It is also committed to climate resilience 
through taking preventative steps to protect the City and its assets from the 
physical risks from climate change. 
 

5. Fifteen costed project delivery areas were presented with the Strategy and, these 
have subsequently been consolidated into ten specific project plans. The relevant 
plan for this Committee is ‘Buildings’, which will deliver on the City Corporation’s 
strategic objective to improve energy efficiency in its residential properties. 

 
6. To achieve its global goals, the City Corporation has committed to a major 

investment of £68 million on an action plan which includes: 
 

• Improving energy efficiency in our investment, corporate and housing 
properties. 

• Aligning our investment portfolio with the Paris Agreement. 

• Enhancing carbon removal in our open spaces. 

• Driving net zero throughout our supply chain. 

• Integrating climate considerations into all our decisions. 
 
7. The City Corporation’s housing portfolio comprises approximately 5,000 

properties, of which, around 2,100 mainly leasehold properties are in the Barbican 
Residential Estate. There is no doubt that investment in the decarbonisation of its 
housing portfolio is essential to the overall success of the City Corporation’s CAS. 

 
Considerations 
 

City Corporation’s CAS 
 
8. As part of the development of its CAS, the City Corporation commissioned Arup 

and the Carbon Trust to: 
 

• build a cross-corporation model for achieving net zero; 

Page 90



• to define methodologies for greenhouse gas reporting (City Corporation and 
the Square Mile); 

• to establish baseline emissions for future reporting; 

• to define pathways for achieving net zero for the City Corporation’s directly 
controlled operations, assets not under direct control and, across the 
Square Mile. 

 
9. This work produced a model that provided annualised carbon targets and 

associated indicative costs of £6.33m over the life of the strategy, across the 
existing housing areas that were in the top 25 carbon emitting sites (social housing 
estates and the Barbican Residential Estate). This was included in the £68m 
approved by the Court of Common Council in October 2020, to support the 
implementation of the City Corporation’s CAS. We now need to build on this model 
and create a detailed action plan for the mobilisation and delivery phases. 

 
10. Understandably however, it has been made clear to all service areas under CAS, 

including Housing and Barbican, that we should make best use of any available 
external grant funding to supplement CAS funding from the City Corporation. 
External funding is to be used to accelerate the targets and programme of works 
under CAS but, CAS funding could be used as match funding where applications 
for external funding require.   

 
External Funding 

 
11. Staff in Housing and Barbican have been working closely with colleagues in the 

City Surveyors Department to understand and identify the external funding 
opportunities that may be accessible to support the delivery of a programme of 
works to reduce the carbon footprint of our residential housing stock. 
 

12. Although, there has been a lot of publicity and promotion of grant funding schemes 
relating to the UK’s target to bring all its greenhouse gas emissions to net zero by 
2050, few of them are relevant to the City Corporation as a social landlord. Those 
that are of interest and potential benefit include: 

 

• Green Homes Grant (GHG). 

• Renewable Heat Incentive (RHI). 

• Green Heat Network Fund. 

• Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund. 

• Mayor of London’s Green New Deal. 
 

13. Of the above, the GHG (Local Authority Delivery Phase 2) Scheme is currently of 
interest and, one that we are investigating further. The fund administrator, (Greater 
South Eastern Energy Hub) has allocated funding, provisionally, on fuel poverty 
indices from 2018, which gives the City Corporation a very small allocation of 
around £50,000. However, we are looking to increase this substantially by working 
collaboratively with the likes of the London Boroughs of Islington, Southwark and 
Tower Hamlets where, some of our housing stock is located.  
 

14. Longer term, we will be looking to maximise opportunities for funding from the 
£3.8billion set aside for the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund. This funding 

Page 91



opportunity is not yet fully developed and, it is likely to be rolled out over a longer 
period and delivered across several phases. The Social Housing Decarbonisation 
Fund appears to present the best opportunity to access significant levels of 
external funding and, will be a key focus in developing our plans. Obviously, as the 
name of the funding suggests, this will not be accessible for the Barbican 
Residential Estate. 

 
15. Other key opportunities include the strategic development of our heating networks, 

with support from the RHI over the next 12 months potentially, followed by the 
Green Heat Networks Funding. There may be opportunities for some of our estates 
to connect into low carbon heat networks in the longer term, as major 
developments close by adopt this technology.   

 
16. With many of these funding opportunities, match funding will be necessary. The 

GHG (Local Authority Delivery Phase 2) Scheme, for example, will require 1/3 
match funding. Again, we will look to maximise the benefit of these schemes by 
utilising the City Corporation funds allocated to the CAS for use as match funding.   

 
Resident Engagement 

 
17. Residents will play a crucial role in ensuring the success of the City Corporation’s 

CAS and, it is essential that we engage with them at an early stage. To pave the 
way for wider resident engagement on the plans outlined in this paper, some 
preliminary engagement meetings were held with Members - and in some cases 
residents - representing residential wards. To date, these meetings have been held 
on the Barbican Estate, the Golden Lane Estate, and combined meetings for the 
Portsoken, Aldgate and Tower Wards, were held between December 2020 and 
February 2021.  
 

18. The purpose of these meetings was to provide residents with an overview of the 
City Corporation’s CAS, highlighting areas relating to housing, whilst at the same 
time, recognising those climate action initiatives that are planned, or underway 
locally, led by the residents themselves.  

 
19. On 5 May 2021, the first Barbican Residents Workshop was held (via Zoom) with 

the Corporation’s specialist consultant, Etude, a team of sustainability engineers 
with experience in energy policy, low energy building design, environmental 
assessment and construction inspection. The workshop, entitled ‘Understanding 
the buildings through the residents’ eyes’ was well attended, with 15 resident 
participants representing different blocks on the Barbican Estate. The workshop 
included small group discussions where, residents talked about heating and 
ventilation systems and, energy efficiency opportunities across the Barbican 
Estate. The presentation slides used in the meeting are included at Appendix B to 
this report. 

 
20. Etude is combining the outputs from this first workshop with the results of an 

Estate-wide online questionnaire, desk-based studies and, site visits to help 
strengthen and finalise its recommendations in the production of the Corporation’s 
final Housing Net Zero Action Plan.     

 

Page 92



21. A second Barbican Residents Workshop has been arranged for 5 July when, Etude 
will feed back to residents on the findings of the first workshop and present to 
residents its draft Housing Net Zero Action Plan. 

  

Next Steps 
 

22. The work that Etude is doing to develop a Housing Net Zero Action Plan for the 
Corporation is nearing completion, with an initial draft report expected very shortly. 
This marks the start of the internal review that will eventually lead to the Action 
Plan being presented to the next meeting of this Committee for sign off. It should 
be noted however, that due to time restraints and target dates, the Action Plan may 
need to be signed off under the Urgency Procedure.  

 

23. As set out previously, a second Barbican Residents Workshop has been arranged 
for 5 July when, Etude will feed back to residents on the findings of the first 
workshop and present to residents its draft Housing Net Zero Action Plan. 

  

 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A:  City of London Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy. 
Appendix B: Barbican Workshop 1: Understanding the buildings through the 

residents’ eyes. 
 
 
 
Paul Murtagh  
Assistant Director, Barbican Estate & Property Services 
 
T: O20 7332 3015 
E: paul.murtagh@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 93

mailto:paul.murtagh@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



Climate Action 
Strategy 2020-2027 

Page 95



Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 3

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

	 	 	 	  

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

-

-

-

-	

-

-

-

-

Executive summary The headlines 

This document sets out the City of London 
Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy from 
2020 onwards. It explains the importance 
of climate action to the achievement of 
the economic, societal and environmental 
outcomes described in our Corporate Plan, 
2018-23. It describes why we need to act 
now and the our rigorous approach for  
the frst six years. 

Contents 

Executive summary 2 Our climate vision, aims and goals 13 

The headlines 3 The first six years 14 

Who we are 4 Actions to support the achievement of net zero 14 

What we can do 4 Actions to build climate resilience 15 

Why us? Why now? 5 Actions to champion sustainable growth 15 

Our approach 6 Glossary 16 

Our evidence base 6 

The breadth of emission sources we include 7 

Turning risks into opportunities 8 

How we complement others’ efforts 9 

Factoring climate action into everything we do 9 

Our baseline 10 
View online at:

Adapting to climate change 12 theglobalcity.uk/resources 

AT THE CITY CORPORATION WE WILL DO THIS THROUGH MAJOR INVESTMENT IN: 

Improving energy efficiency at 
our investment and corporate 
properties 

Aligning our investment portfolio 
with the Paris Agreement 

Enhancing carbon removal in our 
open spaces 

Protecting our shared natural 
resources 

Driving net zero through our 
supply chain 

Integrating climate considerations 
into all our decisions 

THROUGH THIS STRATEGY THE CITY 
CORPORATION COMMITS TO ACHIEVING: 

Net zero by 2027 in the City 
Corporation’s operations 

Net zero by 2040 across the City 
Corporation’s full value chain 

Net zero by 2040 in the Square 
Mile 

Climate resilience in our 
buildings, public spaces and 
infrastructure 

ACROSS THE SQUARE MILE WE WILL: 

Work with all stakeholder groups 
to accelerate the transition to net 
zero 

Support SMEs to reach net zero 

Invest in making the Square 
Mile more resilient to extreme 
weather and flooding P

age 96

http://theglobalcity.uk/resources


Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 5

	 	 	 	 	 	

 

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 
	 	 	 	 	 	 

	 	 	 	 	 	 

	 	 	 	 	

 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

 

 

 	 	 	 	

 

 

	 	 	 	 	

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

	 	 	 	 	 	

Who we are 

The City of London Corporation is the 
governing body of the Square Mile, 
dedicated to a vibrant and thriving City, 
supporting a diverse and sustainable 
London within a globally-successful UK. 

The Square Mile is the historic centre 
of London and is home to the ‘City’ – 
the financial and commercial heart of 
the UK. Our reach extends far beyond 
the Square Mile’s boundaries and 
across private, public and charitable 
and community sector responsibilities. 
We bring an independent and non-
party political voice and convening 
power. This enables us to promote the 
interests of people and organisations 
across London and the UK and play a 
valued role on the world-stage. 

What we can do 

Our reach extends far 
beyond the Square 
Mile’s boundaries and 
across private, public and 
charitable and community 
sector responsibilities. 

In the context of climate action, this means we can support the achievement of net zero, 
build climate resilience and champion sustainable growth to achieve a truly sustainable 
City. We will do this by means of the following actions, committed to in our Corporate Plan, 
2018-23, against which we drive our performance. 

1. SUPPORT THE ACHIEVEMENT
OF NET ZERO BY…

• Influencing UK and global
policy and regulation and
international agreements to
protect the environment.

• Providing environmental
stewardship and advocacy,
in the use of resources,
emissions, conservation,
greening, biodiversity and
access to nature.

• Providing a clean
environment and driving
down the negative effects of
our own activities.

2. BUILD CLIMATE
RESILIENCE BY…

• Preparing our response
to natural and man-made
threats.

• Protecting consumers and
users of buildings, streets
and public spaces.

• Providing thriving and
biodiverse green spaces and
urban habitats.

3. CHAMPION SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH BY…

• Providing world-class spaces
for businesses and markets
to thrive.

• Modelling new ways of
delivering inclusive and
sustainable growth.

• Supporting organisations
in pioneering, preparing for
and responding to changes
in regulations, markets,
products and ways of
working.

• Supporting, celebrating
and advocating responsible
practices and investment.

Why us? Why now? 

This means we 
must commit to 
achieving net zero 
and to ensuring 
that the Square 
Mile, and our assets 
outside it, are 
resilient to more 
extreme weather 
events.” 

Alderman 
William Russell, 
The Rt. Hon. The Lord 
Mayor of the City of 
London 

The City of London Corporation’s core 
purpose is to promote the long-term 
interests of the City, and thereby 
support the UK’s economy. We have 
long been champions of sustainability. 
We were the first local government 
body to introduce a smokeless zone, 
in 1954, two years ahead of the Clean 
Air Act. We developed a climate change 
adaptation strategy in 2010. Since then, 
we have supported the growth of the 
UK’s green finance sector. 

Scientific evidence tells us that the 
climate is already changing. We need 
to act now if we are to limit global 
warming to 1.5 degrees, thereby 
avoiding the more extreme effects of 
climate change. This means we must 
commit to achieving net zero. And we 
must ensure that the Square Mile, and 
our assets outside it, are resilient to 
more extreme weather events. Acting 
now is the right and responsible thing 
to do. It is also key to securing and 
advancing our global market position as 
a financial centre. It will also strengthen 
the appeal of our buildings, investment 
properties and public spaces as 
attractive places to work, live, study and 
visit, both now and in the future. 

We do not need to compromise 
the economy to fix the environment. 
In reality, climate action will drive 
growth and jobs. In order to remain 
relevant and commercially viable, we 
need to be responsible and resilient. 

Alderman William Russell 
The Rt. Hon. 
The Lord Mayor of the City of London 

What used to be ‘green finance’ 
is fast becoming the only option for 
the financial and professional services 
sector. Integrating climate risks and 
opportunities into all decision-making 
is similarly becoming the new normal. 

In developing this strategy, we have 
focused on achieving best practice. 
Driven by an evidence-based approach, 
we have included a broad range of 
emission sources and physical risks. 
Founded on science-based targets, 
rather than simply a call to action, 
our Climate Action Strategy aims 
to ensure that the Square Mile and 
City Corporation make a positive 
contribution. We will help tackle climate 
change, address the resilience risks 
it poses, and seize the opportunities 
presented by the transition to a net 
zero economy. 

This is one of the defining cross-City 
Corporation policies. It supports 
delivery of our Corporate Plan, 2018-
23. But we cannot do this alone. This
strategy sets out how we will work in
partnership with our stakeholders to
develop the solutions to tackle climate
change. We must build back better
following the pandemic, making sure no
one is left behind. We invite you to work
with us as we adapt so that our society
can flourish for decades to come.

Catherine McGuinness 
Chair of the Policy & Resources Committee, 
The City of London Corporation 

P
age 97



Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 7

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

 

  

 
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	

Our approach 

We cannot fulfl our ambitions alone. This means we must frst demonstrate 
robust climate action ourselves. We will also share our methodology with, 
and learn from, others on this journey. 

In developing this strategy, we have 
focused on achieving best practice 
with our evidence-based approach 
and the breadth of emission sources 
and physical risks we address. We are 
committed to embedding climate action 
in everything we do and working within 
the latest standards and advice. 

OUR EVIDENCE BASE 

This strategy brings together numerous 
related City Corporation strategies, 
policies and campaigns – from our Local 
Plan and Responsible Business Strategy 
through to our Clean City Awards. It 
builds on the momentum, progress 
and lessons learned so far. See the ‘Our 
baseline’ section for more information 
on achievements to date. 

To understand how far we had come 
already and what is left to do, we 
commissioned expert advice on our 
current and future resilience levels, 
carbon emissions and capacity for 
removing carbon from the atmosphere. 
We followed the leading global 
standards and best practice guidelines 
in developing our approach. 

We explored resilience risks with 
the sectors and organisations that 
our economic growth is built upon, 
from utilities and transport providers 
through to financial and professional 
services and our cultural sector. 
Together, we identified what is needed 
for the Square Mile to continue to 
compete successfully in the face of 
climate change. And we asked the 
public how important climate action 
should be to us. We asked them what 
they would like to see happen and what 
they would be willing to do themselves. 
Three-quarters of respondents said 
climate change should be extremely 
important to us. 

We have identified separate 
targets for the Square Mile 
and the City Corporation. 
These have been 
understood by emission 
type to ensure progress in 
all key areas. 

We have built an evidence base upon 
which we have designed our action 
plan. We have the data we need to set 
and track stretch but achievable targets. 
We will test and learn as we go. We 
have identified separate targets for the 
Square Mile, the City Corporation and 
types of emissions to ensure we deliver 
as much as possible, as soon 
as possible. 

THE BREADTH OF EMISSION SOURCES 
WE INCLUDE 

Many organisations and authorities 
focus on driving down the emissions 
they have most control over – scope 
1 and 2. Addressing scope 3 can be 
daunting as it covers everything an 
organisation buys, sells, invests in, 
leases to others and disposes of as well 
as commuting and business travel. 
But for organisations and financial 
centres like ours, scope 3 makes up 
a large portion of the total carbon 
footprint. Measuring it can lead to the 
design of innovative solutions to reduce 
carbon emissions significantly. 

We have included scope 1, 2 and all 
scope 3 emissions to take ownership, 
show leadership and help make this 
standard practice. This can make it 
appear that we are greater emitters 
than our peers that have not included 
Scope 3. We will continue to enhance 
our understanding of scope 3 data with 
our partners. We will also advocate for 
standardisation of reporting to ensure 
everyone addresses their total carbon 
footprint effectively. 

1,520
ktCO2e 
Scope 3 

36 For organisations and 
financial centres like ours, 
scope 3 makes up aktCO2e large portion of the total

Scope 1 and 2 carbon footprint – and 
measuring it can lead to 
the design of innovative 
solutions to reduce carbon 
emissions significantly. 

P
age 98



Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 9

	 	 	 	 	

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

 

	 	 	

 

 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Risks to health, wellbeing 
and productivity from 
high temperatures. 

Risk of shortages in the public 
water supply. 

Flooding of communities, 
businesses and infrastructure. 

Risks to natural capital, including 
terrestrial and freshwater 
ecosystems, soils and biodiversity. 

Threats to food production 
and trade. 

New and emerging pests and diseases, and 
invasive non-native species, affecting people, 
plants and animals. 

Fewer people living in fuel poverty. 

Benefits to health, 
wellbeing and productivity 
from climate action. 

More and better 
space for people and 
nature, including urban 
biodiversity. 

A resilient global 
business environment 
in the face of climate 
impacts. 

Benefits over other global 
financial centres which 

will face more extreme 
challenges. 

Job creation. 

Reduced risk to the 
insurance sector and the 
assets they protect. 

Reduction in unnecessary use of 
resources (water, food) and generation of 
waste and use of natural capital (greening 
rather than air conditioning to reduce 
temperatures). 

RISKS 

OPPORTUNITIES TURNING RISKS INTO OPPORTUNITIES 

Whatever action we and others take, we still 
need to prepare for hotter drier summers, 
warmer wetter winters, stronger winds, more 
frequent extreme weather events and rising 
sea levels. As we do this, we will go beyond 
mitigation and seize opportunities to deliver 
social, economic and environmental outcomes 
that mean that everyone benefits from the 
action we take. 

We still need to prepare 
for hotter drier summers, 
warmer wetter winters, 
stronger winds, more 
frequent extreme 
weather events and 
rising sea levels. 

HOW WE COMPLEMENT OTHERS’ EFFORTS 

This strategy has been developed 
to support the delivery of The Paris 
Agreement on climate change (2015) 
and our obligations under the UK 
Climate Change Act (amended 
2019). This has enshrined in law 
both a target of net zero emissions 
by 2050 and measures for climate 
adaptation (improved resilience). It is 
complementary to London-wide and 
national efforts to reduce emissions 
and improve the resilience of our 
communities and urban spaces. 

Crucially, this includes the draft London 
Plan, the Greater London Authority’s 
London City Resilience Strategy 2020, 
the UK Committee on Climate Change 
Climate Risk Assessment 2017 and 
National Adaptation Programme. It also 
covers the landscape of policies set 
out by government and advice from 
the Intergovernmental Panel on 
Climate Change (IPCC). 

The UK Climate Change 
Act (amended 2019) has 
enshrined in law both 
a target of net zero 
emissions by 2050 and 
measures for climate 
adaptation. 

FACTORING CLIMATE ACTION INTO 
EVERYTHING WE DO 

Reinforcing and building on the 
commitments we made in our 
Corporate Plan (2018-23), and to make 
sure we are doing all we can to reach 
our goals, we commit to: 

Accessing the best evidence of 
our impact possible so we can 

learn, share our experience and 
hone our actions as we go. 

Ensuring that vulnerable groups 
who are most likely to be impacted 
by climate change are prioritised 

in our decision-making. 

Embedding a climate lens into all 
our decision-making. 

Identifying measurable targets 
to track performance against our 

goals. 

Monitoring progress against our 
targets at regular intervals. 

Keeping our actions and targets in 
line with changing legislation and 
recommendations (see next section 

for more details). 

Reporting publicly to our 
committees and via published 

annual reports. 

Reviewing and refreshing the 
action plan every five years. 

Working with our stakeholders 
and partners and listening to their 

ideas, experiences and views. 

P
age 99



Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 11

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 

Our Baseline 

SUPPORTING THE ACHIEVEMENT OF NET 
ZERO 

The City Corporation has achieved a 19% 
reduction in energy consumption within our 
operational sites since 2008. Since 2018, 
100% of the electricity we have purchased 
has been from renewable sources. 

We bought six new electric vehicles and 
eight new hybrid vehicles in 2018/19. 
And in 2019/20 installed 20 new electric 
vehicle charging points as part of the City’s 
“Transition to a Zero Emission Fleet” policy. 

100% 
of the electricity 
we purchase is 
renewable. 

City of London Corporation emissions 

Square Mile 
scope 1 and 2 

emissions 

2008 

2020 

Square Mile emissions 

The Square Mile has achieved a 55% 
reduction in Scope 1 and 2 emissions 
since 2008 (using data from 2018/19). 
This has been assisted by our ambitious 
planning requirements which have 
led to 75% of new commercial 
developments with over 20,000m2 

floor space achieving at least a BREEAM 
‘Excellent’ rating since 2014. 

20,000m2
of floor space achieving at least a 
BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating since 2014. 

Following SBTi guidance, 
we need to reduce or remove 

1,050 ktCO2e

of emissions to achieve net zero. 
This includes 100% of scopes 1 
and 2 and 66% of scope 3. 

We need to reduce or remove 

1,528 ktCO2e

to achieve net zero. 

HOW WE REMOVE CARBON FROM THE 
ATMOSPHERE 

We look after over 11,000 acres of green 
spaces across London and its green belt. 
This equates to approximately 5,500 
football pitches. This natural capital not 
only provides valued space for people and 
nature but also currently removes 16 ktCO2 

per year. This is equivalent to 40% of the 
City Corporation’s scope 1 and 2 emissions. 

The London  
Stock Exchange is the

 ‘greenest’ 
main stock exchange  

across all global  
fnancial centres 

5,500 
The equivalent of nearly 5,500 football 
pitches of green spaces across London 
and its green belt are managed by 
The City of London Corporation. 

BUILDING RESILIENCE 

The City Corporation has long used our 
planning role to implement a range 
of resilience measures in the Square 
Mile. These include green roofs, urban 
greening, landscaping, flood resilience 
and climate resilient new buildings. 

As of 2020, the Square Mile has 
42,600m2 of green roof, up from 
11,200m2 in 2005. This is set to increase 
to 65,800m2 by 2024. The Square Mile 
has achieved a 55% reduction in Scope 
1 and 2 emissions since 2008 (using 
data from 2018/19). This has been 
assisted by our ambitious planning 
requirements which have led to 75% 
of new commercial developments with 
over 20,000m2 floor space achieving at 
least a BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating since 
2014. 

42,600m2
of green roof in the Square Mile. 

CHAMPIONING SUSTAINABLE GROWTH 

The UK is the only global financial 
centre that is also a leading centre 
for green finance, topping both 
conventional and ‘green’ rankings. 
UK market players are committed 
to sustainable principles and the 
regulatory context is both favourable 
and innovative. The London Stock 
Exchange is the ‘greenest’ main 
stock exchange across all global 
financial centres. The UK was the 
first government to adopt a Green 
Finance Strategy, which was launched 
at the Guildhall alongside the Green 
Finance Institute. The UK is the leading 
destination for talent that is trained 
and skilled in sustainability matters. 
This allows us to lead and support 
other economies as they transition 
to net zero. 

P
age 100



Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 13 

	 	 	 	 	

 
 

 
 

	 	 	 	

 

 

  

   

	 	 	 	

 

	 	

 

  
 

Adapting to climate change Our climate vision, aims and goals 

Pests like ticks, 
mosquitoes and rats 
will thrive spreading 
diseases such as vivax 
malaria, West Nile 
fever, Dengue fever, 
Chikungunya fever, tick-
borne encephalitis. Trees 
and shrubs will die due 
to spread of pests and 
plant pathogens. 

1 metre sea level rise 
in central London will 
flood areas next to the 

Thames. Sewers will 
overflow to a depth 
of 2 metres in 
parts of the City 
during heavy 
rainfall. 

Average temperature 
rises of 50C (plus 5-100C 
urban heat island 
effect) in summer with 

heatwaves lasting 3 
weeks. Heat related 
mortality will rise by 
540% compared with 
year 2000. 

Demand will outstrip 
water supply by 150%. 
Water shortages and 
bans on non-essential 
water use will be 
frequent. 

Central London 
protected from Thames 
flooding Heavy rainfall 
does not overload 
sewers. 

City’s built environment 
remains cool despite 
rising temperatures. 
Health services manage 
heat related health 
conditions. 

Water conservation 
measures balance 
supply with demand. 
Water is treated as a 
precious resource. 

Surveillance 
programmes will enable 
health services to deal 
with increased disease 
risk. Resilient planting 
will keep the City green. 

Best case by 2080 

W
or

st
ca

se
by

20
80

 

The City will 
experience hotter 

drier summers, warmer 
wetter winters, more 

extreme weather events, such 
as heatwaves and intense 

storms, and higher sea 
levels affecting the River 

Thames. 

Our goals 

Our aims 

For the City of London Corporation 

For the Square Mile’s fabric and function For society 

City of London 
Corporation scope 1 
and 2 emissions are net 
zero by 2027 and scope 
3 emissions are net zero 
by 2040. 

The City of London 
Corporation and its 
assets are resilient 
to climate change. 

The City of London 
Corporation supports 
UK and overseas 
organisations to become 
climate responsible. 

The Square Mile’s scope 
1, 2 and 3 emissions 
(BASIC+ definition) are 
net zero by 2040. 

The Square Mile’s 
buildings, public spaces 
and infrastructure are 
resilient to climate 
change. 

People in the Square 
Mile and beyond 
benefit from a clean, 
green and safe 
environment and 
job creation. 

Our Vision 

The City of London is Responsible, Sustainable and Competitive 

To support the 
achievement 
of net zero 

To build 
climate 
resilience 

To champion 
sustainable 
growth 

20802020 

Mitigations 

Horizon scanning 
for pests and 
diseases. 

Climate resilient 
landscaping. 

Adapting 
buildings and 
public realm to 
cope with higher 
temperatures. 

Public Health 
interventions 
to combat heat 
stress. 

Flood Defence 
improvements. 

Urban greening to 
absorb rainwater 
before it gets to 
the sewers. 

Building 
designs which 
prioritise water 
conservation. 

Water footprint 
management. 

P
age 101



Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 15 

 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 
 

 
 

 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

 
 

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

 

 
 

  

 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

  

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  

 
 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 
 

  

 
  

 
	 	 	 	 	 	 		

 
 

 

 

 

	 	 	 	 	

 
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

 
  

 
  

 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

 
   

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

 

  
  

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

The frst six years 

Our actions and the targets we set build 
upon our Responsible Business Strategy 
(2018 - 23) – “Towards a Sustainable 
Future”. They also refect ongoing work 
in supporting innovation and growth in 
the fnancial and professional services 
sector. These actions relate to the frst 
six years of the strategy. The strategy 
and action plan will then be refreshed 
for the next phase of implementation to 
achieve our 2040 goals. 

THE CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION 

Transform the energy efficiency of our operational buildings 
through the adoption of best available technologies 

Maximise the use of renewable energy sources across our 
operational buildings 

Introduce new land management practices across our open 
spaces aiming to maximise their ability to remove carbon, and 
optimise their biodiversity and resilience value 

Align our financial investment portfolio with the goals of the Paris 
Agreement on climate change 

Embed circular economy principles into our capital projects 
and reduce carbon intensity by using life cycle carbon and cost 
assessment techniques and design specifications 

Accelerate the move to net zero carbon and energy efficient 
tenanted buildings, working closely with tenants to achieve 
shared goals 

Strengthen our requirements and supplier engagement to drive 
performance and innovation in delivering sustainable products 
and solutions 

Upskill our workforce on net zero 

THE SQUARE MILE 

Work with other organisations to develop a Climate Action Fund 
to invest in effective zero carbon technologies and accelerate 
decarbonisation 

Develop a Square Mile renewable energy strategy 

Use our planning role to influence others to embed carbon 
analysis and circular economy principles in capital projects 

Advocate the importance of green spaces and urban greening as 
natural carbon sinks, and their contribution to biodiversity and 
overall wellbeing 

Support organisations in the Square Mile to build circular, low-
carbon and resilient supply chains 

Provide tailored support to SMEs on their decarbonisation 
journeys 

Increase engagement and communications about sustainability 
with residents, businesses, visitors and other stakeholders 

THE CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION 

Build on our existing work to develop an early warning 
system, and clear resilience strategies for pests and diseases 
across our ports and markets, driving down the climate 
related food security risks 

Embed resilience measures into our upgrade plans for our 
owned and operated buildings 

Upskill our workforce on climate resilience 

Embed a climate resilience lens into all our decision-making 

THE SQUARE MILE 

Make the Square Mile public realm more climate change 
ready through adding in more green spaces, urban greening, 
flood resistant road surfaces, adaptable planting regimes and 
heat resistant materials 

Reduce the risk of flooding through developing sustainable 
rain and surface water management policies, resulting in 
a connected system of water recycling, sustainable urban 
draining and rainwater management measures 

Strengthen our planning guidance on climate resilience 
measures for new developments 

Work with our partners to create a more climate resilient and 
diversified energy network across the Square Mile 

Develop a strong, data-led approach to deepen our 
understanding of climate related risks and mitigations across 
the Square Mile 

Ensure that we continue to protect the residents, critical 
assets, infrastructure and heritage of the Square Mile 

THE CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION 

Mobilise capital into sustainable finance 

Secure the UK’s place as a leader for investment in sustainable 
finance products 

Help faster development and adoption of sustainable finance 
products and services 

Share best practice on standards, tools, platforms and expertise to 
facilitate green and sustainable investment and growth 

Encourage global movement towards disclosure and production of 
credible transition plans as the norm 

Foster an ambition to achieve net zero emissions by 2050 or 
sooner for UK-based financial and professional services firms 

Join other investors working through development and 
implementation of net zero transition action plans 

Support financial institutions committing to net zero in the 2040s at 
the latest, covering all emissions, including scope 3 and where data 
allows reliable measurement 

Support charities and SMEs to consider, prepare for and lead the 
response to climate change 

Promote responsible procurement and investment practices. 

Enhance the UK/London’s capacity to finance sustainable 
investment opportunities globally, including emerging markets 

Work with the financial services sector and UK Government to 
promote and scale sustainable finance products and services that 
countries and corporates need to help them transition to net zero 

Influence and support the delivery of technical solutions to 
increase comparability of data and ease of reporting 

Share learning and best practice about the challenges and 
opportunities of our net zero journey 

Address existing inequalities and ensure no one is left behind 

Prepare people for skills needed in a net zero economy 

Facilitate collaborative action on air pollution in London 

Reduce pollution and increase the resilience of the Square Mile 

Reduce air pollution through implementing our ambitious air 
quality and transport strategies 

Embrace circular economy principles across our strategies and work 

Work with our creative and educational sector partners to deliver 
sustainable initiatives 

Enhance greening and biodiversity across our public realm and 
open spaces 

Actions to support the 
achievement of net zero 

Actions to build 
climate resilience 

Actions to champion 
sustainable growth 

P
age 102



Climate Action Strategy 2020-2027 17 

 

 

 

 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

 

 

  

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

   

Glossary 

BASIC+ definition emissions include 
those from within the Square Mile 
from stationary energy, transportation 
and waste, as well as transboundary 
transportation, industrial processes 
and product use and the agriculture, 
forestry and land use sectors. It 
does not include emissions from 
investments. 

Carbon removal is the process by 
which a carbon sink, such as forestry, 
reduces the amount of greenhouse 
gases in the atmosphere. 

Circular economy means keeping 
resources in use for as long as possible, 
extracting the maximum value from 
them whilst in use, then recovering and 
regenerating products and materials at 
the end of each service life. 

Climate resilience is the ability to 
anticipate, prepare for and respond 
to hazardous events, trends or 
disturbances related to climate 
(Centre for Climate and Energy 
Solutions). 

Ecosystem services are benefits to 
humans from the natural environment 
and from healthy ecosystems. 

GHGs means greenhouse gases - the 
emissions responsible for global 
warming. These include methane, 
nitrous oxide and fluorinated gases 
amongst others. 

ktCO2 is the unit of measurement 
for GHG emissions. It standardises 
greenhouse gases into units of kilo-
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 
(ktCO2e). 

A low-carbon economy is simply an 
economy that causes low levels of 
GHG emissions compared with today’s 
carbon-intensive economy. ‘Carbon’ 
refers to carbon dioxide, the GHG which 
contributes the most to climate change. 
The low-carbon economy can be seen 
as a step in the process towards a 
zero-carbon economy. (Science Direct) 

Natural capital refers to the stock 
of natural resources, which includes 
geology, soils, air, water and all living 
organisms. 

Net zero emissions are achieved 
when anthropogenic emissions of 
greenhouse gases to the atmosphere 
are balanced by anthropogenic 
removals over a specified period 
(Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi) 
and CDP, Towards a science-based 
approach to climate neutrality in the 
corporate sector, September 2019). N.B. 
Further guidance on the definition of 
net zero and its guiding principles are 
due later in 2020 from the SBTi. 

Science-based / Paris-aligned 
(Science-Based Target Setting Manual, 
April 2020) GHG emissions reduction 
targets are considered “science-based” 
if they are in line with what the latest 
climate science says is necessary to 
meet the goals of the Paris Agreement 
(2015) - to limit global warming to well-
below 2°C above pre-industrial levels 
and pursue efforts to limit warming to 
1.5°C. 

SMEs refers to small and medium-sized 
enterprises. 

Scopes 1, 2 and 3 for an organisation: 
(Defra Environmental Reporting 
Guidelines and the Greenhouse Gas 
Protocol, A Corporate Accounting and 
Reporting Standard, revised edition) 

Scope 1 (direct) means emissions 
from activities owned or controlled 
by your organisation that release 
emissions into the atmosphere. They 
are direct emissions. Examples of scope 
1 emissions include emissions from 
combustion in owned or controlled 
boilers, furnaces, vehicles, emissions 
from chemical production in owned or 
controlled process equipment. 

Scope 2 (energy indirect) means 
emissions released into the atmosphere 
associated with your consumption of 
purchased electricity, heat, steam and 
cooling. These are indirect emissions 
that are a consequence of your 
organisation’s activities, but which occur 
at sources you do not own or control 

Scope 3 (other indirect) means 
emissions that are a consequence of 
your actions, which occur at sources 
which you do not own or control 
and which are not classed as scope 
2 emissions. Examples of scope 3 
emissions are business travel by 
means not owned or controlled by your 
organisation, waste disposal which is 
not owned or controlled, or purchased 
materials. 

Scopes 1, 2 and 3 for a city: 
(GHG Protocol, Global Protocol for 
Community-Scale Greenhouse Gas 
Emission Inventories) 

Scope 1 means GHG emissions 
from sources located within the city 
boundary 

Scope 2 means GHG emissions 
occurring as a consequence of the use 
of grid- supplied electricity, heat, steam 
and/or cooling within the city boundary 

Scope 3 means all other GHG emissions 
that occur outside the city boundary as 
a result of activities taking place within 
the city boundary. 

P
age 103



 	 	 	 	

 

 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

About The City of 
London Corporation: 
The City of London Corporation is the governing body of 
the Square Mile dedicated to a vibrant and thriving City, 
supporting a diverse and sustainable London within a 
globally successful UK. 

We aim to: 

• Contribute to a flourishing society 

• Support a thriving economy 

• Shape outstanding environments. 

By strengthening the connections, capacity and character 
of the City, London and the UK for the benefit of people 
who live, work and visit here. 

www.cityofondon.gov.uk Page 104

www.cityoflondon.gov.uk


1

Barbican Workshop 1:
Understanding the buildings through the residents’ eyes

May 2021  |  Rev A

City of London Housing Net Zero Action Plan

P
age 105



2

Our team

Anna MacKenzie |  Expertise in Net Zero action plans 

Naomi Grint |  Expertise in building fabric and ventilation improvements

Kate Millen  |  Expertise in low carbon heating systems

Thomas Lefevre |  Expertise in Net Zero action plans 

P
age 106



3

Agenda

2.0

Setting the scene – what we are doing and why 

1.0

Welcome

4.0

Sharing summaries of small group discussions

3.0

Small group discussions - heating system, energy efficiency 
and ventilation

5.0

Next steps and goodbyes

P
age 107



4

Workshop principles

Share your experiences

Everyone’s input is equally valued

Share “air time”

Be open to new concepts and ideas

All issues raised will be considered in our work

Discussions will focus on reducing energy and carbon emissions

Use the chat function for questions

P
age 108



5

Agenda

2.0

Setting the scene – what we are doing and why 

1.0

Welcome
9

4.0

Sharing summaries of small group discussions

3.0

Small group discussions - heating system, energy efficiency 
and ventilation

5.0

Next steps and goodbyes

P
age 109



6

Our experience

Pan-London Retrofit Action Plan GLA Building Renovation Passport

Scaling up retrofit for housing associations Energiesprong DEEP-ER

P
age 110



7

• The City of London’s commitment to Net Zero

• Climate Change Committee guidance

• There are significant benefits of a Housing retrofit 
action plan beyond carbon

Home retrofit: a key priority for the City of London Corporation

P
age 111



9

The three pillars that constitute a low energy/zero carbon home.

Low energy and net zero carbon buildings are 
supported by three key pillars: energy efficiency, low 
carbon heat and renewable energy.

Energy efficiency

Buildings use energy for heating, hot water, 
ventilation, lighting, cooking and appliances. The 

efficient use of energy leads to reduced running costs 
and carbon emissions. It also reduces a building’s 
impact on the wider energy supply network.  

Low carbon heating

Low carbon sources of heat are an essential feature of 

zero carbon buildings. Existing buildings need to 
undergo a transition away from gas as soon as 
possible. 

Renewable energy

The roofs of existing buildings should be utilised as 
far as possible for photovoltaic panels, to support the 

increased demand for renewable energy.

Energy efficiency Low carbon heat

Renewable energy generation

Low energy / 
zero carbon 

home

Defining Net Zero

P
age 112



10

Towards a decarbonised and smarter electricity 

system

• The carbon content of electricity has fallen over 
the last few years.

• It is now three times less than 10 years ago and 
already lower than natural gas. 

• It is forecasted to continue to reduce even further 
in the next 20-30 years. This underpins the current 

energy revolution and is why electrification of 
transport and heat is now seen as the best 
strategy to move away from fossil fuels.

Hydrogen is unlikely to be a solution for heating 

homes

Hydrogen is not expected to be widely available at 
the domestic scale, certainly before 2030 and 
possibly not before 2050. There are remaining 
uncertainties about how it will be produced and 
stored, and the impact of these choices on overall 
energy use, carbon emissions and crucially, what the 

costs will be for consumers.

The electricity revolution

Long-term variations in emission factor of grid electricity 
show the rapid historical reduction in emission factors. 

-200
-100

0

100

200

300
400

500

600

700
800

900

1000

1100

1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 2050

G
rid

 e
m

is
si

on
 fa

ct
or

 (g
C

O
₂/

kW
h)

MTP (2010)

UK CCC (2013)

Drax Electric Insights (2020)

National Grid (2020) 'Consumer
Transformation'
National Grid (2020) 'System
Transformation'
National Grid (2020) 'Steady
Progression'
National Grid (2020) 'Leading the
Way'
HM Treasury Green Book Average
(2019). Used in analysis

Smart meters and smart thermostats

P
age 113



15

High carbon 
heat network

Individual gas 
boiler

Direct 
electrical 
heating

Low carbon 
heat network1

Heat pump 
system2

Heating 
demand 
<40 
kWh/m2.yr 

Heating 
demand 
<100 
kWh/m2.yr

Heating 
demand 
<150 
kWh/m2.yr 

Heating 
demand 
>150 
kWh/m2.yr 

High carbon Low carbonHEAT DECARBONISATION

FA
BR

IC
 A

N
D

 V
EN

TI
LA

TI
O

N

1 A heat network would qualify as ‘low carbon heat network’ for the purpose of this matrix only if it 
would have a lower carbon content of heat (per kWh delivered) than direct electric heating. Any system 
using fossil fuels and/or with high distribution losses is unlikely to qualify.

2 Could be an individual or building level heat pump with low distribution losses.

Lo
w

 e
ne

rg
y

H
ig

h 
en

er
gy

Use of fossil fuels
Not compatible with Net Zero. The heating 
system must be changed.

Low carbon heat but risk of high energy costs
A change of heating system may not be required but 
fabric, ventilation and system should be improved

Low carbon heat and sufficient level of energy efficiency
Compatible with Net Zero

Mapping out each building’s journey towards Net Zero

P
age 114



17

Understanding the housing stock

We are seeking to understand the estates and stock 
portfolio across key areas:

• Which retrofit measures are suitable for each 
estate?

• What energy and carbon savings can be delivered?

• What are the opportunities and constraints at each 
site?

• Which sites are a priority?

• How much are measures likely to cost?

• Funding options

Delivering an action plan

We will deliver a clear, well written, visual report that 

incorporates an action plan that the City of London 
can take forward. 

Understanding the City of London Corporation’ housing stock 

Webber Street, 60
Prebend Street, 77

Dron House, 80
Great Suffolk Street, 88

Sumner Street, 100

Wenlock Road, 104

Sydenham Hill Estate, 150

Holloway Esate, 194

Middlesex Street Estate, 
234

York Way Estate, 275

Golden Lane Estate, 599

Avondale Square Estate, 
687

Barbican Estate, 2071

P
age 115



18

Our understanding of the aims and required outputs of the project

P
age 116



19

Phase 1 – Understanding the buildings

Phase 2 – Engaging with you

Phase 3 - Making retrofit clearer

Phase 4 - Establishing key actions and retrofit scenarios

Phase 5 – Recommendations and implementation plan

Our plan of work

P
age 117



20

Residents survey

Survey results!

P
age 118



21

Summary of survey responses - Barbican

Response rate

• 40 responses from Barbican 

residents

• Representation across most 
buildings.

50% of respondents said they open 
windows in the winter as it gets too 
warm

1/3 of respondents use additional 
plug-in electric heaters

Winter comfort levels – large range, 
and no pattern between top, middle 
or lower flats. 

Summer comfort levels on the 
slightly too warm side. 

Headlines

P
age 119



22

Summary of survey responses - Barbican

0
1 1

7

4

14

4

6

2
1 1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Nu
m

be
r o

f r
es

po
ns

es

Winter time comfort

Too cold Just right Too hot

0 0 0
1 1

16

8 8

5

1 1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Nu
m

be
r o

f r
es

po
ns

es

Summer time comfort

Too cold Just right Too hot

Winter comfort levels – large range, 
and no pattern between top, middle 
or lower flats.

Summer comfort levels on the 
slightly too warm side. 

P
age 120



23

Emerging themes

Ventilation

Inconsistent 

ventilation strategy

DraftsHeat where it’s needed
and not where it’s not

Frobisher crescent

Controls Insulation

Windows

Heating

Trimmers

Energy efficiency Renewable energy

Solar photovoltaic 
panels

P
age 121



24

Agenda

2.0

Setting the scene – what we are doing and why 

1.0

Welcome
9

4.0

Sharing summaries of small group discussions

5.0

Next steps and goodbyes

3.0

Small group discussions - heating system, energy efficiency 
and ventilation

P
age 122



25

Agenda

2.0

Setting the scene – what we are doing and why 

1.0

Welcome
9

5.0

Next steps and goodbyes

3.0

Small group discussions - heating system, energy efficiency 
and ventilation

4.0

Sharing summaries of small group discussions

P
age 123



26

Agenda

2.0

Setting the scene – what we are doing and why 

1.0

Welcome
9

3.0

Small group discussions - heating system, energy efficiency 
and ventilation

4.0

Sharing summaries of small group discussions

5.0

Next steps and goodbyes

P
age 124



Committee(s): 
Residents Consultation Committee – For Information  
Barbican Residential Committee – For Information 

Dated: 
14/06/2021 
28/06/2021 
 

Subject:  
Service Level Agreement Working Party Quarterly 
Review - January - March 2021 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

1, 2, 3 & 4 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? n/a 

What is the source of Funding? n/a 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

n/a 

Report of:  
Director of Community and Children's Services 
 

For Information  

Report author:  
Michael Bennett 
Head of Barbican Estates 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report, which is for noting, updates Members on the review of the estate 
wide implementation of Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and Key 
Performance Measures (KPIs) for the quarter January – March 2021. This 
report details comments from the House Officers and the Resident Working 
Party and an ongoing action plan for each of the SLAs. 

 
Recommendation 

 
Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the report. 
Main Report 

 
Background 
 
1. This report covers the review of the quarter for January – March 2021 following the 

estate-wide implementation of the SLAs and KPIs with comments from the House 
Officers and the resident Working Party as well as an ongoing action plan for each 
of the service areas. 

 
Current Position 
 
2. During the COVID-19 lockdown the six weekly block inspections were not 

completed for the quarter January – March 2021. They re-commenced in April 
2021. 

Page 125

Agenda Item 14



3. House Officers, Resident Services Manager and the Head of Barbican Estates 
attended the recent virtual SLA Working Party review meeting in April to review the 
SLAs and KPIs.  
 

4. New comments from the residents Working Party (Randall Anderson, Jane Smith, 
David Graves, Graham Wallace, Fred Rodgers, John Tomlinson, Christopher 
Makin), House Officers, surveys, House Group meetings, RCC and resident 
general comments/complaints are incorporated into the January – March 2021 
comments. 

 
5. Actions identified following each quarterly review have been implemented where 

appropriate and comments are included in the action plans in Appendices 1 to 5.  
 

6. The action plans monitor and show the progress made from each of the quarterly 
reviews together with all of the comments and responses/actions from the House 
Officers and resident working party.  

 
7. All of the unresolved issues from the previous quarterly reviews have been carried 

forward to this current quarterly review. The House Officers as residents’ 
champions determine whether the issue has been dealt with and completed. 

 
8. All of the resolved issues have been filed as completed by the House Officers in 

conjunction with the resident working party. Once comments are completed, they 
will be removed and filed.    

 
Proposals 
 
9. The Barbican Estate Office will continue to action and review the comments from 

the House Officers and Resident Working Parties related to the Customer Care, 
Supervision and Management, Estate Management, Property Maintenance, Major 
Works and Open Spaces SLAs. 

 
10. The review of the SLAs and KPIs for the quarter April to June will take place in July 

and details of this review will be presented at the September committees.  
  
Conclusion 
 
11. The reviews will continue on a quarterly basis with the Resident SLA working party 

and actions will be identified and implemented where appropriate, to improve 
services. 

  
Appendices 

• Appendices 1- 5 SLA Action plans.  
 
Background Papers Quarterly reports to committee from 2005  
 
Michael Bennett  
Head of Barbican Estates 
Department of Community and Children's Services  
E: michael.bennett@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 126



APPENDIX 1

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW- CUSTOMER CARE, SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT 2020-21

Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED

1 Jul - Sept 18 HO Review of SLA booklet.

On hold due to other priorities & current resources. This 

has been on hold for a long time, is there likely to be 

any movement this year (2021)? Awaiting lifting of 

moratorium on permanent recruitment in the COL but 

we anticpate being able to begin to look at this piece of 

work this year.

5 Oct - Dec 20 HO Officers continue to Work from Home.

The House Officer team were on site to complete 

inspections during quarter 3. With the new lockdown in 

quarter 4, this has again been paused. Details are 

regularly posted in the bulletin. House Officers are back 

on site from mid-April to carry out inspections. Completed

8 Oct - Dec 20 SLA

Officers names and contact details had been removed 

from the website. City policy and decision.

This has being reviewed by officers with the City 

Solicitor and the BEO has been successful in names 

and numbers being re-introduced. Completed

9 Oct - Dec 20 SLA

"To resolve written formal complaints satisfactorily 

within 14 days" KPI. Who decides if the complaint has 

been dealt with satisfactorily?

Agreed by the Working Party that the wording of the KPI 

be reviewed by Officers. Draft text: "to respond to 

complaints no later than ten full working days from the 

date of acknowledgement". As part of the formal 

complaint’s procedure, if residents are not satisfied with 

their response, they can escalate their complaint to the 

next stage of the 3 staged Complaints procedure. The 

KPIs should reflect this if they are escalated. Completed

10 Jan - Mar 21 HO

KPIs have not been produced for this current quarter 

due to Lockdown. Will re-commence from April 2021. For comment only. Completed

12 Jan - Mar 21 HO

Survey conducted on "new format" bulletin. Feedback 

and suggestions will be reported back throughout May 

21. For comment only. Completed

13 Jan - Mar 21 HO

The next estatewide Resident Satisfaction Survey will 

be in September 21. For comment only. Completed

14 Jan - Mar 21 SLA

Will there be a BEO announcement about non 

lockdown measures?

Frontline provision of services were unaffected except 

window cleaning of the lower levels of the towers in this 

last lockdown. Reception will remain at 11-2 hours for 

the time being. Office arrangements are being reviewed 

for capacity.

Page 1 03/06/21

P
age 127



APPENDIX 1

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW- CUSTOMER CARE, SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT 2020-21

Completed Actions - House Officers as residents' 

champions determine whether the issue has been 

dealt with and completed satisfactorily.

GAG Gardens Advisory Group PS Property Services

CPA Car Park Attendant LL/SC Landlord/Service Charge cost

LP Lobby Porter DCCS Department of Children & Community Services

BAC Barbican Centre

BOG Barbican Operational Group - senior officers from BEO and 

Property Services

Source of comments:

HO House Officers COM Complaint

RCC Residents Consultation Committee SURV Survey

AGM House Group Annual General Meeting HGM House Group Meeting

ESS Estate Services Supervisor

Page 2 03/06/21

P
age 128



APPENDIX 2

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - ESTATE MANAGEMENT 2020-21
Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED

1 Oct- Dec 19 AGM

Concierge to notify House Officers when a new resident 

moves onto the Estate and clarify if a leaseholder or sub-

tenant.

SLA WP agrees. Welcome cards have been 

printed. Agreed to include Barbican Association 

information on next re-print. New move 

information is being provided. The ESS are also 

providing information about moves in and out of 

4 Oct - Dec 20 HO Shielded staff.

2 Car Park Concierge and 1 Estate Cleaner fall 

into the Clinically Extremely Vulnerable category 

and have not been at work during the recent 

lockdown. As of April 2021 shielding has ended 

and 2 staff members have returned. Completed

5 Oct - Dec 20 HO

Pink card delivery system for residents parcels. Halted 

during pandemic. 

At October meeting agreed for Sub-Working 

group of the SLA WP to be set up (to include 

David Graves, Graham Wallace and Fred 

Rodgers. The group will also include a House 

Officer and be chaired by Barry Ashton, Car Park 

and Security Manager). Currently on hold due to 

other priorities. Agreed that resident members 

meet to review options.

6 Oct - Dec 20

HO/COM

PLAINT

Window cleaning service continuing as normal except 

the key permission flats (lower tower flats). Issues should 

be reported in a timely fashion so the contractors can 

remedy.

This has been advertised via our bulletin. As of 

19.04.21, the service is completely back to 

normal. This has been advertised in the bulletin. Completed

7 Jan - Mar 21 HO

Some issues experienced with delivery drivers of food 

deliveries. A reminder has been provided in the bulletin.

8 Jan - Mar 21 HO

Some complaints about quality of window cleaning 

received. Raised at the weekly contractor review meetings. 

9 Jan - Mar 21 RCC

Clarification of when rubbish can be left in corridors. Also 

contractors items. Reminders to be included in the bulletin.

10 Jan - Mar 21 SLA

Window cleaning was noted by some residents at Breton 

House AGM to be of a poor standard.

This will be passed back to the contractor via the 

regular meetings held with them.

Page 3 03/06/21

P
age 129



APPENDIX 3 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - PROPERTY  MAINTENANCE 2020-21

Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED

1 Oct - Dec 19 COM

Recommendation from formal complaints that the residents 

should be better informed of any delays to Repairs.

BOG meeting to review procedures with additional 

"update" communications to residents from Repairs 

Service Desk now in place.    

3 Apr - Jun 19 Res Repairs feedback forms with cost of works to be included.

This was due to "Go Live" on a new Housing 

Management System but this has been delayed until 

Autumn 2021. It is expected that this system will enable a 

survey to be sent to residents at the end of the work with 

an accurate cost attached. SLA WP will monitor further. 

6 Oct - Dec 20 HO

Delays encountered with some repairs during lockdown due to 

issues with deliveries and staffing levels.

Staffing levels back to normal. Deliveries returned to near 

normal. Glazing – still experiencing some delays due to 

backlog with suppliers catching up with orders from 

others.

 

7 Jan - Mar 21 COM

The majority of work orders involve water penetration, be it 

balcony/roof repairs or joinery. Has this been looked at as part of 

the condition survey? Yes.

8 Jan - Mar 21 COM Additional communications to residents when jobs are extended. For comment only.

9 Jan - Mar 21 HO

In-house contractors Metwin have secured additional team 

members to get through the roof works backlog. For comment only.

10 Jan - Mar 21 HO

Plumbing stack pipes corroding. House Officers have noted 

there are an increasing number of these jobs. Has this been 

looked at as part of the condition survey? 

Yes - this has been partly covered by the condition 

survey.

 

Page 4 03/06/21

P
age 130



APPENDIX 4

SLA AGREEMENT REVIEW - MAJOR WORKS 2020-21

Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED

1 Oct - Dec 20 HO/complaintAGM

Water Tank project. Issues with now much noisier 

tanks. Resident involvement during contract letting, 

may have stopped issues.

A satisfaction survey is scheduled to be distributed to all affected 

properties. 

2 Oct - Dec 20 HO

Fire signage project currently on hold pending 

Planning Advice.

The Fire Signage Project on the Estate had been suspended for 

the time being, while discussions  were ongoing with Planning 

and English Heritage.  Whilst Listed Building Consent would not 

be required, the Planning Department would need to approve a 

Fire Strategy, in order for the project to proceed.  Residents’ 

comments in respect of the signage would be taken into account 

but the signage must be legally compliant. Site visits would form 

part of the development of the Fire Strategy in order to check the  

readability at different times of the day.  

4 Oct - Dec 20 HO 5 year redecorations programme 2020-2025. There will be a report to June 2021 committees.

5 Oct - Dec 20 SLA

Front entrance door set replacements. Could 

information about this be publicised so that all 

residents are aware? Timings of project, what it will 

look like, how it will be delivered.

Following the March Gateway 1-2 report to committee the next 

stages include site surveys and the appointment of a design team 

during Spring/Summer 2021 and a Gateway 3-4 options appraisal 

report to committee in the Autumn.

6 Jan - Mar 21 HO

Joinery on top floors. HOs have noted there are a 

number of complete window replacement works on 

the top floors of various blocks. Has an assessment 

been carried out in terms of trends & will this feed 

into the Asset Maintenance Working Party & or a 

project? Has this been taken into account with 

regards to the redecorations programme?

5 03/06/21

P
age 131



APPENDIX 5 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - OPEN SPACES 2020-21

Quarter Source COMMENT/QUERY RESPONSE/ACTION COMPLETED

2 Oct  - Dec 20 Complaint Issue with window cleaning due to overgrown shrubs.

Pruning has now been undertaken and the problem 

has been resolved. Completed.

4 Oct - Dec 20 SLA

Has the cutting back and work in the private gardens 

(Thomas More) been too severe in terms of 

Biodiversity?

It is accepted that some of the works in Thomas More 

garden may look harsh, but after careful consideration 

it was felt that a number of the established plants 

needed pruning back beyond where they have been 

previously pruned to, as they had become overgrown. 

And in the case of the jasmine in the north western 

corner, it had been allowed to get far too large, to the 

detriment of other plants that it had engulfed. It was 

decided to do this heavy pruning works early in the 

year as to avoid impacting on nesting birds. City 

Gardens would welcome discussions with any 

residents who have any suggestions about improving 

biodiversity in the garden.
Completed.

5 Oct - Dec 20 SLA

Condition of lakes? Has this got worse in recent 

years?

The works to refurbish the original lake pumps in 

summer 2019 have dramatically improved water 

circulation. Additionally the Centre removed a large 

amount of silt from the top channel. The waterfall by 

Brandon Mews is currently out of action. The Centre 

are aware and will attend to it when able but this does 

not greatly add to the lake circulation. Residents and 

visitors do continue to feed the birds. Completed.

6 Jan - Mar 21 HO Beth the Gardener writing in the Friday bulletin.

New gardener post regularly in the weekly bulletin. 

This has been positively received and explains what 

improvements are being undertaken and the reasons 

behind certain decisions. Completed.

7 Jan - Mar 21 AGM

"Desire lines" in the new planting in Thomas More 

have led to areas of grass being worn away.

This has been passed to the gardeners who will re-

seed where needed. In the most part, grass is very 

resilient and will grow back.

8 Jan - Mar 21 SLA

"No Mow May" that is, not lawn mowing an area of 

the lawn. Will an area of Thomas More follow this?

Page 6 03/06/21

P
age 132



APPENDIX 5 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT REVIEW - OPEN SPACES 2020-21

9 Jan - Mar 21 SLA

Are staff numbers the same or have they dropped 

down?

No . A member of the team has been moved (part of 

the week) to another site but is being covered by 

another member of the team. Completed.

Page 7 03/06/21

P
age 133



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 134



Committee(s): 
Residents’ Consultation Committee - For Information 
 
Barbican Residential Committee – For Information 

  
 

 

Dated: 
14062021 
 
28062021 

Subject: Progress of Sales & Lettings 
 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

4 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? £ 

What is the source of Funding?  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

 

Report of Andrew Carter Director of Community and 
Children’s Services 

For Information  

Report author: Anne Mason Community and Children’s 
Services 
 

 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report, which is for information, is to advise members of the sales and 
lettings that have been approved by officers since your last meeting. 
Approval is under delegated authority and in accordance with Standing 
Orders. The report also provides information on surrenders of tenancies 
received and the number of flat sales to date. 
  

 
 

Recommendation(s) 

. 
Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the report. 
 

Main Report 

 

Background 
 
 
1. The acceptance of surrenders of tenancies and the sale and letting of flats are 

dealt with under delegated authority. 
 

Page 135

Agenda Item 15



Current Position 
 
SURRENDERS/TERMINATIONS 
 
 
2. There are no new surrenders to report. 
 
 
RIGHT TO BUY SALES   
 
 3.       

 12 May 2021 16 February 2021 

Sales Completed 1079 1079 

Total Market Value £95,873,837.21 £94,546,908.01 

Total Discount £29,718,523.62 £29,539,064.26 

NET PRICE £66,155,313.59 £65,007,843.75 

 
OPEN MARKET SALES 
 
4.     
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
5. Fifteen exchanges of sold flats have taken place with the sum of £720,254 being 

paid to the City of London.  
 
6.      The freeholds of 14 flats in Wallside have been sold with the sum of £35,000 

being paid to the City of London. 
 
7. A 999 year lease has been completed with the sum of £43,200 being paid to 

the City of London. 
 
APPROVED SALES 
 
8.   

 
CASE 
 

 
Block 

 
Floor 

 
Type 

 
Price 

 
Remarks as at 
12/05/2021 

 
1 

Andrewes 
House 

2 21 £815,000 Proceeding 

2 Andrewes 
House 

02 A £580,000 Proceeding 

 

  1 June 2021 16 February 2021 

Sales Completed 864 863 

Market Value  £162,379,271.97 £160,504,271.97 

Page 136



 
COMPLETED SALES 
 
9. Since the last report the sale of 291 Shakespeare Tower has completed. Also, 

the purchase of the final shares of two properties which were originally 
purchased on Right to Buy Rent to Mortgage terms have been completed. 

 
  

Page 137



 
SALES PER BLOCK 
10. 
BLOCK TOTAL TOTAL NET PRICE % NO. OF 

NO. OF NO. SOLD           £ FLATS

FLATS SOLD

ANDREWES HOUSE 192 184 16,648,760.00 95.83

BEN JONSON HOUSE 204 196 14,877,454.83 96.08
 

BRANDON MEWS 26 24 1,057,460.00 92.31
 

BRETON HOUSE 111 109 8,506,712.50 98.20
 

BRYER COURT 56 55 2,307,338.50 98.21
 

BUNYAN COURT 69 68 6,484,280.00 98.55
 

DEFOE HOUSE 178 173 17,414,782.50 97.19

FROBISHER CRESCENT 69 69 100.00
 

GILBERT HOUSE 88 87 11,046,452.50 98.86
 

JOHN TRUNDLE COURT 133 133 5,467,527.50 100.00
  

LAMBERT JONES MEWS 8 8 1,400,000.00 100.00
 

MOUNTJOY HOUSE 64 63 5,925,723.50 98.44
 

THE POSTERN/WALLSIDE 26 22 5,959,130.00 84.62
 

SEDDON HOUSE 76 75 8,445,677.50 98.68
 

SPEED HOUSE 114 109 13,589,848.50 95.61
 

THOMAS MORE HOUSE 166 162 13,668,455.00 97.59

WILLOUGHBY HOUSE 148 147 14,972,670.50 99.32
 

TERRACE BLOCK TOTAL 1728 1684 147,772,273.33 97.45

(1728) (1684) (147,450,573.33) (97.45)

CROMWELL TOWER 112 103 27,005,801.00 91.96
 

LAUDERDALE TOWER 117 114 24,553,779.63 97.44
 

SHAKESPEARE TOWER 116 111 30,001,185.60 95.69
  

TOWER BLOCK TOTAL 345 328 81,560,766.23 95.07

(345) (327) (78,859,996.39) (94.78)

ESTATE TOTAL 2073 2012 229,333,039.56 97.06

(2073) (2011) (226,310.569.72) (97.01)

Page 138



Key Data 
 

Strategic implications –  

Financial implications – Receipts from sales are credited to the City Fund.  

Resource implications - None 

Legal implications - None 

Risk implications - None 

Equalities implications – None 

Climate implications - None 

Security implications - None 

 
 
Appendices 
 
None 
 
 
Anne Mason 
Revenues Manager 
T: 020 7029 3912 
E:  anne. mason@cityoflondon.gov.uk[ 
 

Page 139

mailto:anne.%20mason@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



 

 

Committee: Date(s): Item no. 

Residents’ Consultation Committee 

Barbican Residential Committee 

14 June 2021 

28 June 2021 

 

Subject: Update Report  

Report of: Director of Community and Children's Services Public 

Summary 

Barbican Estate Office  

 

1. Security - Anti-Social Behaviour  

2. Agenda Plan 

Property Services – see appendix 1 

3. Public lift availability 

4. Asbestos inspections 

Recommendations that the contents of this report are noted. 

Background 

This report updates members on issues raised by the Residents’ Consultation 

Committee and the Barbican Residential Committee at their meetings in March 2021. 

This report also provides updates on other issues on the Estate. 

1. Security - Anti-Social Behaviour  

As previously reported, the Barbican Estate Security Committee (‘BESC’) and its 

Chairman, Deputy David Bradshaw C.C. have been working on the development of 

an easy-to-use computer programme whereby residents will be able to record anti-

social behaviour (‘asb’) occurring across the estate. 

The BESC Chairman is delighted to announce that through the good offices of Jim 

Davies - Membership Secretary of the Barbican Association and a professional 

computer programmer - a system, which we believe will provide the ideal solution, 

has been developed by Jim Davies. It has been branded "ASB Reporter". 

It is important to note that the main objective of this programme is to determine the 

Page 141

Agenda Item 16



 

 

level and type of asb activity; the success of which will depend on the willingness of 

residents to use it. Indeed, some residents do not believe that there really is a 

serious level of anti-social behaviour and it is certainly true to say that such activity 

tends to take place mainly in certain 'pockets' of the estate. That being so, our 

experiment in gathering data on asb will be to provide evidence to inform future 

decisions and policy changes both for residents and local enforcement agencies. 

The ASB Reporter has been tested by all House Group Chairs across the estate and 

the consensus view is that it is an easy system to use and it was well received. 

The BESC has now had the opportunity to analyse feedback from House Group 

Chairs and consider their comments/suggestions etc...Clearly the importance of 

protecting personal privacy and ensuring compliance with General Data Protection 

Regulations is paramount and Jim Davies, on behalf of the BESC, is undertaking 

final ‘tweeks’ to the programme. When complete, agreement with BAGC members 

will be sought, following which the programme will be launched to all Barbican 

residents. 

The objectives and privacy policy details of the programme will be featured on the 

revised BA website and it is intended to deliver, in tandem, a brief explanatory leaflet 

to all letterboxes in the Barbican with comparable information to support the ASB 

Reporter’s launch. 

Non computer-savvy residents or those without the necessary equipment will be able 

to report incidents verbally to their CPA and/or Lobby Porter, all of whom have 

access to a PC and who will complete the ASB Reporter for said residents. 

Alternatively, a paper version of the ASB Reporter is being considered by Barbican 

Estate Management who would supply copies to CPA’s and Lobby Porters. 

A monthly summary report providing details of the type and amount of asb activity 

that has taken place across the estate without personal details such as names, 

addresses, emails and/or contact details will be available for all residents to view on 

the BA website. 

Initially, the ASB Reporter will merely be used to record asb incidents so residents 

will need to also use the current method of phoning 101; BEO; City Noise Team as 

appropriate for any asb activity requiring immediate action. 

2. Agenda Plan  

The table below includes a list of pending committee reports: 

Page 142



 

 

Residents’ Consultation Committee & Barbican Residential Committee 

 

Report Title Officer 

RCC 

Meeting 

Date 

BRC Meeting 

Date 

“You Said; We Did” Actions (Separate list 

for RCC & BRC) 
Michael Bennett 

13 Sept 

 

 

 

27 Sept 

 

 

 
Service Level Agreement Review Michael Bennett 

2020/21 Revenue Outturn (Excluding the 

Residential Service Charge Account) 

Anne 

Mason/Chamberlains 

Relationship of BRC Outturn Report to 

Service Charge Schedules  
Anne Mason 

Progress of Sales & Lettings  Anne Mason 

Arrears Report (BRC Only) Anne Mason 

Working Party Updates (RCC Only) 

• Gardens Advisory  

• Asset Maintenance 

• Background Underfloor Heating 

• Leaseholder Service Charge 

 

Working Parties 

Update Report: 

• Main update - Agenda Plan 2021  

• Property Services Update (Appendix 
1) 

Michael Bennett 

“You Said; We Did” Actions (Separate list 

for RCC & BRC) 
Michael Bennett 

29 Nov 

 

 

 

13 Dec 

 

 

 
Service Level Agreement Review Michael Bennett 

Fire Safety Update Paul Murtagh 

Service Charge Expenditure & Income 

Account - Original Budget 2021/22 & 

Original Budget 2022/23 

Chamberlains 

Revenue & Capital Budgets – Original 

Budget 2021/22 and Original 2022/23 - 

Excluding dwellings service charge income 

& expenditure 

Chamberlains 

Progress of Sales & Lettings  Anne Mason 

Page 143



 

 

Arrears Report (BRC Only) Anne Mason 

Working Party Updates (RCC Only) 

• Gardens Advisory  

• Asset Maintenance 

• Background Underfloor Heating 

• Leaseholder Service Charge 

 

Working Parties 

Update Report: 

• Main update - Agenda Plan 2022  

• Property Services Update (Appendix 
1) 

Michael Bennett 

 

Contact:          Michael Bennett, Head of Barbican Estates 

Tel:     020 7029 3923 

E:mail:    barbican.estate@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 144

mailto:barbican.estate@cityoflondon.gov.uk


 

 

 

Property Services Update                                                                Appendix 1 

 

3. Public Lift Availability  

Availability of the public lifts under the control of Property Services is detailed below:  

 

4. Asbestos Re-inspections 

Asbestos re-inspections continue and at the time of this report they are approx. 50% 

complete. Completion is expected to be late July 2021. Further details of the programme 

can be found in the weekly Barbican broadcast. 

 

 

                 

 

Lift From April 2019 to March 

2020 

From April 2020 to March 

2021 

Turret (Thomas More) 99.85% 99.92% 

Gilbert House 99.82% 99.67% 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



Committee(s) 
 
Barbican Residential Committee  
 
 
 

Date: 
 
28062021 
 

Subject: 
Barbican Arrears 
 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s 
Corporate Plan does this proposal aim to impact 
directly? 

 
4 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

Report of: 
Andrew Carter Director of Community and Children’s 
Services 

For Information 
 

Report author: 
Anne Mason 

 

 
 
 
 

Summary 
 

This report, which is for information is to advise members of the current arrears in 
respect of tenants and leaseholders on the Barbican Estate. 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation 
 
 
Members are asked to note the report. 
 

Main Report 
 

Background 
 
 
1. Leaseholders and tenants are billed quarterly in June, September, December and 

March. The charges raised include charges for car parking and baggage stores. 
 

2. A further analysis of arrears cases is contained in Appendix 1 (Non-public).  
  
 
 
 

Page 147

Agenda Item 17



 
 
 
 
 
Current Position 
 
 
3. Leaseholders and freeholders 

 
  No of free/ leaseholders  

Charges raised for period  £11,404,161  2012  

Target level of net arrears 1%     
Actual level of net arrears   
 0.63% 

    

     
Age Analysis of Debt: Mar 21    Dec 20  

     
Value of debts  
 
3 - 6 months £  51,466.88 71 £94,633.218 111 
6 – 12 months £  35,730.90 38 £ 38,690.20 48 
     
12 - 24 months £ 20,559.06 12 £ 16,194.65 11 
Over 24 months £ 33,224.40     5 £ 31,299.39  6 
     

Total arrears outstanding  £140,981.24  £ 180,817.45  
     

Action taken:     
Amounts subject to 
arrangement £          0.00   0 £        762.27 2 
Amounts referred to 
Comptroller for recovery action 
Amounts awaiting write-off 

£ 69,685.09 
 
£          0.00         

     7 
 

0 

£   61,976.34 
 
£   2,074.00 

7 
 

1 

Net debt outstanding £ 71,296.15  £  116,004.76  
 

There is a total of 89 leaseholders in arrears. 

Of the amounts owing for over 12 months (£53,783.46) £49,901.67 is included in the 
amounts referred to C&CS, the remaining £3,881.79 relates to 8 cases.  

The net debt outstanding comprises 82 accounts.  

 

 

 

 

Page 148



4. Tenants 
 

  

No of 
tenants   

Charges raised for period   £1,723,723 61   
Target level of net arrears 1% 
Actual level of net arrears 1%     
     
 Mar 21  Dec 20  
Age Analysis of Debt:     
 
Value of debts     
3 - 6 months £ 25,025.38 6 £11,042.49 4 

6 - 12 months £ 12,760.57 1 
 
£ 12,569.08 2 

     

12 - 24 months £ 21,785.44 
 

1 £15,597.94       1 
debts over 24 months £          0.00 0 £          0.00 0 

Total arrears outstanding £ 59,571.39  £ 39,209.67  
     
Action taken:      
Amounts subject to arrangement £   1,345.83                        1  £   4,637.22 2  
Amounts referred to Comptroller for 
recovery action £  40,933.51        1 £ 34,546.01        1 

Net debt outstanding £  17,292.05       £        26.44  
 
     

There is a total of 6 tenants in arrears. 

 

5. Former tenants’ arrears 
 

Charges raised for period to  N/A 

No of 
former 
tenants 1  

Target: as flats are surrendered 
infrequently the target is that action on      
arrears must be dealt with within 3 
months     
    Mar 21  Dec 20  
Age Analysis of Debt:     
Value of debts 3 - 6 months £        0.00 0 £        0.00 0 
Value of debts 6 - 12 months £        0.00 0 £        0.00 0 

     
Value of debts 12 - 24 months £         0.00 0 £         0.00 0 
Debts over 24 months £12,697.75 1 £12,697.75 1 

Total arrears outstanding £12,697.75  £12,697.75  
     
     

Page 149



Action taken: 
Amounts subject to arrangement £         0.00  £         0.00  
Amounts referred to Comptroller for 
recovery action/in dispute £12,697.75   £12,697.75  
Awaiting write off £         0.00  £         0.00            
Net debt outstanding £         0.00  £         0.00  

 
 
There is 1 case in total. 

One case is currently being dealt with by the Comptroller and City Solicitor. 

 
 
 
 
Appendices 
 
 

• Appendix 1 – Arrears Update (Non-Public) 
 
 
Anne Mason 
Revenues Manager DCCS 
 
T:  020 7029 3912 
E: anne.mason@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 150

mailto:firstname.surname@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 151

Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 155

Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 159

Agenda Item 23
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 165

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 169

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 179

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 181

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 183

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 185

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 187

Agenda Item 24
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 195

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 199

Agenda Item 25
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a To approve the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on Monday, 15th March 2021
	3b To approve the minutes of the special meeting held on Wednesday, 5th May 2021
	3c To receive the draft minutes of the Residents' Consultation Committee held on Monday, 14th June 2021
	4 To appoint a Member to the Culture Mile Working Party
	5 To appoint a Member to the Car Park Charges Working Party
	6 'You Said:We Did' - Outstanding Actions
	7 Fire Safety Update
	BRC - FIRE SAFETY - ACTION PLAN (JUNE 2021)

	8 Barbican Fire Door Replacement Programme - Progress Report (Gateway 2)
	9 Communal Repairs & Redecoration Programme for the Barbican Estate (2015-2020) - Outcome Report (Gateway 6)
	Appendix 1 - Project Coversheet - Barbican Redecs 2015-20

	10 Barbican Estate Redecoration Programme (2020-2025) - Progress Report (Gateway 5)
	11 Charging Policy for Car Park and Stores - Annual Review
	DCS 0521 Charging Policy for Car Parking  Stores appendices RCCBRC June 2021

	12 Electric Vehicle Charging Update
	DCS 1121 EVC Update Appendix 1 EVWP minutes March 2021
	DCS 1121 EVC Update Appendix 2 EVWP minutes May 2021
	DCS 1121 EVC Update Appendix 3 Options for charging EV users

	13 Climate Action Strategy
	climate-action-strategy-2020-2027
	20210385 CoLHousing NZ Action Plan-Presentation for residents-Rev B

	14 Service Level Agreement Working Party Quarterly Review - January - March 2021
	SLA 20-21 Jan - Mar 21

	15 Progress of Sales and Lettings
	16 Update Report
	DCS 0621 Update Appendix 1 Property Services RCCBRC (002)

	17 Barbican Arrears
	21 Non-Public Minutes
	22 Barbican Residential Arrears Non- Public Appendix
	23 Barbican Podium Waterproofing,Drainage and Landscaping Works (Ben Jonson, Breton & Cromwell Highwalk) - Phase 2 - 1st Priority Zone
	Appendix 1 - Project Coversheet Barbican Podium Phase 2 April 2021
	Appendix 2 - Progress Report
	Appendix 3 - Site Location Plan
	Appendix 4 - Master Plan
	Appendix 5 - Barbican Podium Phase 2 Priority Zone 1 - Phasing Plan
	Appendix 6 - Programme

	24 Barbican Estate Commercial properties, rental support - repayment plans from June 2021
	DCS 1221 Appendix 1 Summary of assistance provided since March 2020

	25 Commercial Letting: Shakespeare Tower



